
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting

Wednesday - November 1, 2017

2:00 PM

Classrooms 1, 2 & 3



I. Call to Order  Richard
Mathey

II. Minutes For Approval Richard
Mathey

E. Bylaws For Approval Richard
Mathey

A. CEO Contract Update  Richard
Mathey

B. Strategic Plan Update  Richard
Mathey

C. Memorial Hospital Acquisition Update  Richard
Mathey

D. Finance & Audit Committee and Spending Authority Matrix  Richard
Mathey

VII. Old Business  Richard
Mathey

A. Building & Grounds  Taylor Jones

FY 18_9.pdf - Page 32
 

  

1. Capital Expenditures Requests For Approval Taylor Jones

Narrative to September 2017 Financial Statement.pdf - Page
45
 

  

Narrative Provider Clinic September 2017.pdf - Page 48   

2. Narratives  Irene
Richardson

FY 18_10.pdf - Page 37
 

  

C. Finance & Audit   

meeting book - tuesday - october 17, 2017 building & grounds
committee meeting update.pdf - Page 28
 

  

B. Foundation Board  Marty Kelsey

X. Committee Reports  Richard
Mathey

A. Pledge of Allegiance  Richard
Mathey

Minutes for October 4 2017.docx - Page 5
 

  

III. Community Communication  Richard
Mathey

IV. Medical Staff Report
No report included in the packet.

 Dr. David
Dansie,
Medical Staff
President

V. Executive Session
(W.S. Section 16-4-405(a)(ii) and 16-4-405(a)(iii))

 Richard
Mathey

VI. Credentials
Confidential information available for Board review on the portal.

For Approval Richard
Mathey

Bylaws Revised November 2017.pdf - Page 12
 

  

VIII. New Business  Richard
Mathey

IX. Chief Executive Officer Report
No report included in the packet.

 Irene
Richardson,
CEO

Meeting Book - Wednesday - November 1, 2017 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting

Board Meeting Agenda

Page 2 of 248



 

4. Investment Recommendation For Approval Irene
Richardson

Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Book   

Narrative High Desert September 2017.pdf - Page 49
 

  

3. Bad Debt
Will be provided on the date of the meeting.

For Approval Ron Cheese,
Patient
Financial
Services
Director

Investment.pdf - Page 50
 

  

Strategic Value Quality and Safety.pdf - Page 156  Amanda
Molski, Quality
Director

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement -QAPI- Patient
Experience and Safety Plan - final copy.pdf - Page 169

For Approval Amanda
Molski

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement -QAPI- Patient
Experience and Safety Plan-Changes.pdf - Page 177
Red-line copy provided per request of Board.

  

Value Summary Template- MHSC.pptx - Page 185
 

  

PDSA Detailed Worksheet- IHI - QAPI Plan 2017-2018.docx -
Page 187
 

  

Improvement Summary Template.pptx - Page 190
 

  

Driver Diagram Example- Sepsis 2016.pdf - Page 195
 

  

QAPI and Safety Process Overview 2017-2018.pdf - Page 196
 

  

PDSA Quick Reference Worksheet.doc - Page 198
 

  

Improvement Summary Example-Explanation of use.pptx - Page
199
 

  

Driver Diagram- MHSC Template.pdf - Page 204
 

  

E. Quality  Taylor Jones

meeting book - october 25, 2017 finance & audit committee
meeting.pdf - Page 51
 

  

D. Human Resources  Richard
Mathey

A. University of Utah Affiliation Agreement For Approval Richard
Mathey

Sysmex XN Hematology Analyzers.pdf - Page 218
 

  

Mission at Castle Rock and MHSC.pdf - Page 230
 

  

Clinical Agreement with Simmons College.pdf - Page 233
 

  

RAVE Mobile Safety.pdf - Page 239
 

  

B. Contract Consent Agenda For Approval Richard
Mathey

University of Utah Affiliation Agreement 2017.pdf - Page 207
 

  

XI. Contract Review  Suzan
Campbell

MHSC Model for Improvement- QAPI and Safety Plan 2017-
2018.pdf - Page 205
 

  

Weber State University.pdf - Page 242
 

  

XII. Community Communication  Richard
Mathey

Page 3 of 248



XIII. Good of the Order  Richard
Mathey

XIV. Adjourn  Richard
Mathey

Page 4 of 248



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

October 4, 2017 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on 

October 4, 2017, at 2:00 PM with Mr. Richard Mathey, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Mathey called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following 

Trustees were present: Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara 

Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, CFO & Interim CEO; Dr. David Dansie, Medical Staff 

President; Mr. Jim Phillips, Legal Counsel; and Mr. John Kolb, Sweetwater Board of County 

Commissioners.  

 

Mr. Mathey led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the September 6, 2017, regular meeting as presented was 

made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

Mr. Mathey invited members of the community to address the Board. There were no comments. 

 

FY17 AUDIT  

 

Mr. Darryn McGarvey with CliftonLarsonAllen introduced himself, reviewed the audit process, 

and reviewed information provided to the Board in their meeting packet. Mr. Mathey asked for 

clarification on timing. Mr. McGarvey said CliftonLarsonAllen provides a comparison between 

the previous year and audit year. The auditors worked to gain an understanding of the control 

process. The goal was to understand the cycles of the organization. Mr. McGarvey said 

CliftonLarsonAllen has been working with the Hospital since 2009. There were a number of 

material weaknesses regarding internal controls at the beginning they asked the Hospital to 

correct. There were none this past year. Mr. McGarvey said the audit year was not a good year 

from a payer mix perspective. Productivity for the Hospital and medical group was not favorable. 

He said the total margin does include special purpose tax money. A write-off of a number of 

architect fees for a project the Hospital decided not to move forward with is included. Mr. 

McGarvey said the organization has performed well over the past four years. In FY17 there was 

substantial revenue loss but the Hospital had favorable cash flow. A bright spot is net days in 

accounts receivable. The Hospital saw a 10-day improvement and that is very important. Mr. 

McGarvey said the average age of plant is fairly well under the industry benchmarks for the age 

Page 5 of 248



 

 

Minutes of the October 4, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

of plant. He reviewed industry trend highlights at the federal level. Mr. Jones commented on the 

length and thoroughness of the audit. Mr. Mathey thanked Mr. Ron Cheese, Patient Financial 

Services Director, for the increase in collections and decrease in collection time. Mr. Kelsey said 

he thinks the audit presentation and materials format is very well done. The motion to accept the 

audit report from CliftonLarsonAllen for FY17 as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by 

Mr. Jones. Motion carried. 

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Dansie, President of the Medical Staff, reported both the medicine and surgery departments 

met. Dr. Dansie reported on elections, a reduction in medical staff due to resignations, and 

reported the bylaws committee continues their work. The bylaws committee is reviewing the 

draft provided by legal counsel. The medical staff is formulating questions. Mr. Mathey asked 

Ms. Richardson to forward copies of the draft bylaws to Board members.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Mr. Mathey said the purpose of the executive session is to discuss credentials and personnel. The 

motion to go into Executive Session was made by Mr. Jones; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion 

carried.   
  

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

The Board of Trustees reconvened into Regular Session at 4:16 PM.  

 

CREDENTIALS 

 

The motion to approve the September 11, 2017, Credentials Committee Recommendations as 

follows for appointment to the Medical Staff was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Jones. 

Motion carried. 

 

1. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Alicia Peterson, Emergency Medicine 

 Dr. Justine Macneil, Emergency Medicine 

2. Initial Appointment to Consulting Staff  (2 years) 

 Dr. Humphrey Mansfield, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

3. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Brianne Crofts, General Surgery 

4. Reappointment to Locum Tenens (1year) 

 Dr. Philip Craven, Emergency Medicine 

5. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 Years) 

 Dr. Gregory Kenyherz, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Keiron Kennedy, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Barbara McCorvey, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Stephen Morris, Tele Burn (U of U) 

 

Page 6 of 248



 

 

Minutes of the October 4, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

CEO 

 

Mr. Mathey distributed a prepared statement and read it aloud. He said he put the CEO item on 

the agenda with the intent of asking the Board to remove “interim” from her title and ask the 

Board to offer Ms. Richardson the position of CEO. The motion to offer Ms. Richardson the 

position of CEO was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

 

Mr. Phillips was excused for the remainder of the meeting. 

 

Committee Charters 

 

Joint Conference Committee Charter: The motion to approve the Joint Conference Committee 

Charter as presented was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried. 

 

Building and Grounds Committee Charter: The motion to approve the Building and Grounds 

Committee Charter as presented was made by Mr. Jones; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

Quality Committee Charter: The motion to approve the Quality Committee Charter as presented 

was made by Mr. Jones; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

Finance and Audit Committee Charter and Spending Authority Matrix: Still under review. 

 

Contract Policy: Still under review. 

 

Bylaws 

 

Ms. Suzan Campbell, Chief Legal Executive/General Counsel, reported she, Dr. Sowada and Mr. 

Mathey have been meeting weekly. She reviewed the draft in the meeting packet and said she 

will make the changes as suggested. Mr. Mathey asked Ms. Campbell to cite statutes when 

applicable. An updated draft will be provided to the Board for review. The motion to table for 

further review was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

Bylaws 

 

Ms. Suzan Campbell, Chief Legal Executive/General Counsel, reviewed highlighted questions. 

Mr. Mathey said the Board may approve a process to review and approve contracts. He said he 

wants the Board to have the right to look at anything they want to look at. He suggested striking 

the meeting time, adding Building and Grounds to standing committees, and striking “complete 

authority” sentence. Mr. Mathey asked Dr. Dansie for the history of medical staffs and asked if 

there are governing statutes. Mr. Kelsey commented on the difference between bylaws and rules 

and regulations. Mr. Kelsey said the Board has the authority to adopt a mission statement. Ms. 

Campbell offered to make the suggested changes and return to the Board for review. Mr. Kolb 

Page 7 of 248



 

 

Minutes of the October 4, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

said statute specifically addresses County Memorial Hospital ability to indebt itself. He asked for 

it to be looked into with the Board attorney regarding interpretation. Mr. Kolb asked to add 

appoint and remove instead of just appoint. Mr. Mathey suggested working in that we are a five-

member Board because the Board of County Commissioner said five but that could change. The 

County Commissioners determine the size of the Board and they do have the power to remove. 

 

Mr. Mathey said the Board would take a 10 minute recess. The Board reconvened at 5:43 PM. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Mission Statement and Strategic Plan 

 

Mr. Mathey said the purpose of having on the agenda is to start a conversation. He said he 

learned this is part of the leadership section of The Joint Commission. Mr. Mathey said he feels 

the strategic plan should be referred to the Joint Conference Committee. There was a suggestion 

for the mission statement to be open to everyone. Mr. Mathey nominated Ms. Kristy Nielson, 

Chief Nursing Officer, to coordinate gathering information. Mr. Kelsey suggested considering 

the creation of a vision statement, also.  

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson thanked everyone for their hard work. She reported on the Wyoming Hospital 

Association annual meeting, Best on Board Trustee education, Pulse of Southwest Wyoming 

Hospital presentation, emergency bake and book sale, and upcoming Halloween community 

event. Ms. Richardson welcomed Dr. Bikram Sharma, Hospital Intensivist, and said he will start 

seeing patients October 9. Ms. Richardson recognized Ms. Kari Quickenden, Chief Clinical 

Officer, for her recent three-year appointment by the American Hospital Association to their 

Committee on Clinical Leadership. She recognized Ms. Nielson who was asked by the 

University of Wyoming to participate in a video for nursing. Ms. Richardson reported the 

dietitian staff thanked the Board for supporting them in hosting a recent conference on-site. 

Special recognition was given to Ms. Tami Love, Controller, and Mr. Cheese for their work on 

the audit.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Committees Consent Agenda 

 

Building and Grounds: Mr. Jones invited Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director, to provide a 

summary of Committee meeting highlights. 

 

Foundation Board: Mr. Kelsey reviewed the September 28 meeting highlights. Mr. Mathey noted 

the Foundation Board is not a public board and they should feel comfortable with the 

information they are providing in the Board of Trustees meeting packets.  

 

Governance Committee: Dr. Sowada said there was nothing to report on the Governance 

Committee. 

Page 8 of 248



 

 

Minutes of the October 4, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

 

Quality Committee: Ms. Amanda Molski, Quality Director, said the QAPI (Quality Assurance 

and Performance Improvement) Plan is a working document reviewed and updated every year. 

The plan identifies our high priority areas. Ms. Molski said the plan meets requirements by the 

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and The Joint Commission. Dr. Sowada 

suggested that in the language of the plan where it says “quality safety” that we add “patient 

experience.” She said to include that language in the plan would keep that in front of people. Dr. 

Sowada suggested Ms. Molski add “patient experience” throughout the plan. Mr. Mathey asked 

for a red-line version to the Board to compare. The motion to table approval so the Board 

members have an opportunity to review in greater detail and for Ms. Molski to present a 

PowerPoint at the November regular meeting was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. 

Motion carried.  

 

Finance & Audit Committee 

 

Mr. Jones presented capital expenditure requests FY18-7 and FY18-8 for approval. The motion 

to approve FY18-7 for $9,566 for a biological hood for the Lab and FY18-6 for $2,857.05 for a 

plasma thawer for the Lab as presented was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion 

carried. The motion to approve the net potential bad debt for September of $981,215.09 as 

presented by Mr. Ron Cheese, Patient Finance Services Director, was made by Mr. Jones; second 

by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. The motion to approve investments of $16,992,716 at Bank of 

the West, Key Bank and WyoStar as presented by Ms. Richardson was made by Mr. Jones; 

second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. Ms. Richardson said we do collateral statements with the 

bank and we are covered regarding FDIC.  

 

Human Resources Committee: Mr. Tardoni reported the ad hoc committee met and he presented 

three options and one recommendation from the team. The goal is an approach to getting a 

consistent contract. Mr. Tardoni said the Kaufman Hall proposal for $72,072 included an 

estimate of expenses. Their team consists of 20-30 years of experience. Their approach is more 

like we see come out of the quality committee. The CliftonLarsonAllen proposal for $73,600 

with expenses consists of 20-30 years of experience. This is a separate healthcare consulting 

division of their company. Their look is more the accounting side of the process. They also 

propose looking at our billing cycle. Mr. Tardoni said the Board has already approved contract 

language. This option includes the plan to add language on performance appraisals for providers. 

Mr. Tardoni said the consensus of the group is we do not favor using a consultant. The group 

recommendation is to go with what we have. The motion to accept the recommendation of the ad 

hoc committee as presented was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. Ms. 

Richardson said she will contact Kaufman Hall and CliftonLarsonAllen and let them know of our 

decision as well as thank them for submitting their proposals. 

 

Mr. Mathey asked Ms. Amber Fisk, Human Resources Director, to provide an update on 

projects. She said she is starting a critical job analysis for every employee and will be shadowing 

each position in the organization. She will report more as the project moves forward. 

 

  

Page 9 of 248



 

 

Minutes of the October 4, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

Contract Consent Agenda 

 

Mr. Jones asked to pull the Rumor Service Agreement from the consent agenda for discussion. 

The motion to approve the consent agenda was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Jones. 

Motion carried.  

 

Ms. Deb Sutton, Public Relations and Marketing Director, said we are already paying all of the 

costs noted in the Rumor agreement. We want to bundle the costs to avoid monthly credit card 

charges to the Hospital. We have not had a formal agreement with them and were working on a 

month-to-month basis. Mr. Jones asked if we can do the work without the expense of their 

services. Ms. Sutton replied we cannot at this time. Rumor has one person working on our 

account for our website, Facebook and web presence. She said we can do that but we would need 

to hire another person with that expertise. The motion to approve the agreement as presented was 

made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

Mr. Mathey invited members of the community to address the Board. 

 

Mr. Kolb congratulated Ms. Richardson and thanked the Board for coming to the conclusion to 

offer her the position. He said the Board of County Commissioners has been supportive of Ms. 

Richardson. Mr. Kolb said an issue came up with the Hospital property insurance. The Board of 

County Commissioners (BOCC) pays a premium for insurance. They are the owners of the 

property and the insurance coverage the Hospital has is not the type of insurance the BOCC 

would choose. The County uses Wyoming Association of Risk Management (WARM) to cover 

all of their assets. Mr. Kolb said we are in the beginning stages of reviewing options and he 

thinks there is some merit at looking into it. Mr. Kolb proposed the old County Memorial 

Hospital property would be a great location for storage for the Hospital. He said if it is something 

the Hospital could use, the BOCC would like us to look at repurposing opportunities. Mr. Kolb 

expressed appreciation to the Board, Dr. Dansie, and everyone involved in moving things 

forward in a positive way at the Hospital.  

 

Mr. Cheese thanked the Board for selecting Ms. Richardson. He said she is probably the most 

trustworthy person he knows and to move from here to where we want to go, she is the right 

person. 

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 

 

There were no comments. 

 

  

Page 10 of 248



 

 

Minutes of the October 4, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 7 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Mr. Mathey said there would be an executive session and he did not anticipate any action being 

taken at the conclusion. The motion to go into Executive Session was made by Mr. Jones; second 

by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.   
  

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

The Board of Trustees reconvened into Regular Session at 8:30 PM.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, the motion was made, second and carried to adjourn.  

The meeting adjourned at 8:30 PM.  

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Richard Mathey, President  

Attest: 
 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

Page 11 of 248



Page 12 of 248



Page 13 of 248



Page 14 of 248



Page 15 of 248



Page 16 of 248



Page 17 of 248



Page 18 of 248



Page 19 of 248



Page 20 of 248



Page 21 of 248



Page 22 of 248



Page 23 of 248



Page 24 of 248



Page 25 of 248



Page 26 of 248



Page 27 of 248



Memorial Hospital Board of Trustees

Building & Grounds Committee Meeting

Tuesday - October 17, 2017

3:00 PM

Classrooms 2 & 3

Page 28 of 248



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Building & Grounds Committee 

Classrooms 2 & 3 

3:00 PM 

 

Tuesday – October 17, 2017 

 

 

 

Board Committee Members  Staff Attendees 

Taylor Jones    Irene Richardson 

Ed Tardoni    Jim Horan 

     Tami Love 

     Gerry Johnston 

     Stevie Nosich 

 

Guest 

  John Kolb – Board of Sweetwater County Commissioners 

  

 

Agenda 

 

1. Approve September 12, 2017 Minutes     

2. Project(s) Review  

A. Laundry Update        

B. CT Project Update        

C. Prioritized Projects List      

3. Old Business  

A. Tunnel Issues           

B. Storage Options        

4. New Business       

5. Meeting Schedule         

 

Page 29 of 248



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

Building & Grounds Committee Meeting 

September 12, 2017 

 

 

Trustees Present:   Mr. Taylor Jones 

Mr. Ed Tardoni  

 

Committee Members Present:  Mr. Jim Horan 

     Ms. Tami Love 

     Ms. Irene Richardson 

 

Guests: Mr. Gerry Johnston  

Mr. John Kolb – Sweetwater County Board of County 

Commissioners 

Ms. Stevie Nosich 

 

 

Call Meeting to Order 
 

Mr. Tardoni called the meeting to order.  
 

Meeting Minutes 
 

The minutes of the August 15, 2017, regular meeting were reviewed. The motion to approve the 

minutes as presented was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Horan. Motion carried.  
 

Projects Review 
 

Emergency Department Reception Desk 

 

Mr. Horan said this is complete and may be removed from the agenda.  

 

Laundry Update 

 

Mr. Horan said the vendor still has not been set up in the system. Ms. Richardson discussed the 

process. Ms. Nosich said she has kept the laundry staff informed of the status of the project.  

 

CT Project Update 

 

Mr. Horan said the kick-off meeting will be held September 19. Plan One is ramping up the work 

already.  

 

10-20 Prioritized Projects List 

 

Mr. Horan distributed draft information for review. He said Ms. Richardson asked him to put 

together a list of things that probably could go to the County for reimbursement. Mr. Kolb said 

the County is relying on the Hospital to tell them the priorities. Reimbursement requests cannot 

be for capital and need to be for maintenance items in this fiscal year. Mr. Kolb told Ms. Love to 

put charges on a voucher and designate as maintenance items and submit to the County Clerk for 

payment. He said to submit when the Hospital sustains the cost. Mr. Kolb clarified that 

Page 30 of 248



 

 

Minutes of the September 12, 2017 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

 

reimbursement for maintenance contracts is okay. Mr. Horan said he will refine the list with 

priorities and bring back to the Committee for review.  

 

Old Business 

 

Tunnel Issues 

 

Mr. Horan reported he and Mr. Johnston investigated and continue to explore options. 

 

Existing Contingency Plans 

 

Mr. Horan displayed some binders with policies and procedures utilized by the facilities staff. He 

said the information is available online and in hard copy. Ms. Nosich said we renew the plans 

each year and staff are tested regularly. 

 

Storage Options 

 

Mr. Horan said Ms. Brittany Griffin, Health Information Management Interim Director, is 

researching temperature and humidity regulations. It appears Conex’s might be an option. 

 

New Business 

 

The Joint Commission Survey 

 

Mr. Horan distributed draft information containing his responses to The Joint Commission 

findings. He said he was on vacation during the survey and that, although gone, he owns the 

findings. Mr. Jones said he commended Mr. Horan for making that statement and asked how we 

will prevent this from happening the next time. Mr. Horan said the solution is organizing 

information in a standard way. Ms. Nosich and Mr. Johnston will handle the process. Mr. Horan 

and Mr. Clayton Radakovich, Regulatory Compliance Director, will share chairmanship of the 

Environment of Care Committee and Mr. Horan will provide status reports at each meeting. He 

will report not just on the items that fell out but the important ones that could fall out. Mr. Jones 

said he is concerned with having co-chairs because things fall through sometimes. Ms. 

Richardson said the leadership portion of the response will contain an outline of the reporting 

structure. Mr. Horan said there are other options for accreditation, for example, DNV. He said he 

would like a “partner” in the process rather than a “police” entity.  

 

Charter 

 

Following discussion, the Committee agreed to make no suggested changes to the draft charter. 

 

The Committee agreed to meet again on Tuesday, October 17 at 5:00 PM.  

 

 

 
Submitted by Cindy Nelson. 

Page 31 of 248



Page 32 of 248



Page 33 of 248



Page 34 of 248



Page 35 of 248



Page 36 of 248



Page 37 of 248



Page 38 of 248



Page 39 of 248



Page 40 of 248



Page 41 of 248



Page 42 of 248



Page 43 of 248



Page 44 of 248



Page 45 of 248



Page 46 of 248



Page 47 of 248



Page 48 of 248



Page 49 of 248



Page 50 of 248



October 25, 2017 Finance & Audit Committee
Meeting

October 25, 2017

MHSC Classrooms 1 & 2

Page 51 of 248



Agenda
 

 

II. Approve Meeting Minutes Taylor
Jones

CAPITAL REQUESTS October 25 2017.pdf - Page 10
 

 

FY18-9.pdf - Page 11
 

 

FY18-10.pdf - Page 16
 

 

III. Capital Requests FY18 Taylor
Jones

IV. Building & Grounds Committee Report James
Horan

V. IT Report Rich Tyler

NARRATIVE TO SEPTEMBER 2017
FINANCIAL STATEMENT.doc - Page 27
 

 

FY18 FINANCIALS COMBINED -
SEPTEMBER 2017.pdf - Page 30
 

 

FY18 Other Operating Revenue Detail.xlsx -
Page 46
 

 

CLINIC NARRATIVE TO SEPTEMBER 2017
FINANCIAL STATEMENT.doc - Page 48
 

 

FY18 FINANCIALS CLINIC - SEPTEMBER  

1. Financial Statements Irene
Richardson

A. Monthly Financial Statements & Statistical Data Irene
Richardson

VI. Financial Report  

Agenda Finance Comm October 25 2017.docx - Page
5
 

 

I. Call Meeting to Order Taylor
Jones

Finance and Audit Comm Draft Minutes September
26 2017.doc - Page 6
 

 

18 CAPITAL.xlsx - Page 24
 

 

Building & Grounds October 2017.doc - Page 25
 

 

IT Report fo Finance October 2017.docx - Page 26
 

 

Meeting Book - October 25, 2017 Finance & Audit Committee Meeting

Agenda

Page 2 of 105Page 52 of 248



2017.pdf - Page 49
 
FY18 FINANCIALS HOSPITAL ONLY -
SEPTEMBER 2017.pdf - Page 57
 

 

18 Board Graphs September.pdf - Page 69
 

 

2. Statistics Irene
Richardson

18 PAYOR MIX September 2017.pdf - Page
71
 

 

3. Accounts Receivable report Irene
Richardson

18 FTE PER AOB September 2017.pdf -
Page 73
 

 

4. Paid FTE's Per Adjusted Occupied Bed Irene
Richardson

HDRHCD September 2017 Board.pdf - Page
65
 

 

18 MHSC STATISTICS September 2017.pdf
- Page 70
 

 

FY18 DAYS IN AR September 2017.pdf -
Page 72
 

 

18 FTE REPORT - 100117.pdf - Page 74
 

 

18 INVESTMENT SUMMARY 09-30-17.pdf -
Page 79
 

 

B. Approve Investment Report Irene
Richardson

1. Preliminary Bad Debt Ron
Cheese

2. Title 25 County Voucher Ron
Cheese

3. Legal Summary Irene
Richardson

OCTOBER POTENTIAL BAD DEBT.pdf -
Page 81
 

 

FY18 County Maintenance & Title 25
Voucher.pdf - Page 82
 

 

C. Other Business
 

 

5. Budget Adherence Irene
Richardson

18 DAYS OF CASH OH HAND SEPTEMBER
2017.pdf - Page 80
 

 

Page 3 of 105Page 53 of 248



4. Cash Disbursements Irene
Richardson

18 BOARD LEGAL September 2017.pdf -
Page 83
 

 

A. Financial Forum Discussions Taylor
Jones

VII. New Business
 

 

FY18 CASH DISBURSEMENTS - September
2017.pdf - Page 84
 

 

CMS Critical Access Hospitals.pdf - Page 100
 

 

VIII. Adjournment Taylor
Jones

Page 4 of 105Page 54 of 248



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE AGENDA 
  

Wednesday ~ October 25, 2017  4:00 p.m.   Classrooms 1 & 2 
      

   Voting Members:     Non-Voting Members: 
  Taylor Jones, Chairman  

Marty Kelsey 
       Ron Cheese 
       Tami Love 
       Rich Tyler 

Irene Richardson 
Dr. Larry Lauridsen 
Dr. Augusto Jamias 

  Guests:                        

 Angel Bennett 
John Kolb, Commission 
Dr. Wallace Curry 

 Jim Horan 
Kari Quickenden 
Dr. Cody Christensen 

Kristy Nielson 
Tracie Soller 
 

     

I. Call Meeting to Order      Taylor Jones 

II. Approve September 26, 2017 Meeting Minutes    Taylor Jones 

III. Capital Requests FY 18      Taylor Jones 

IV. Building Project Review      Jim Horan     

V. IT Report        Rich Tyler 

VI. Financial Report        

A. Monthly Financial Statements & Statistical Data  Irene Richardson 

1.  Financial Statements     Irene Richardson 

2.  Statistics       Irene Richardson 

3.  Accounts Receivable report    Irene Richardson 

4.  Paid FTE’s Per Adjusted Occupied Bed   Irene Richardson 

5.  Budget Adherence      Irene Richardson    

B. Approve Investment Report     Taylor Jones 

C. Other Business       

  1.  Preliminary Bad Debt      Ron Cheese 

  2.  Title 25 County Voucher     Ron Cheese 

  3.  Legal Summary      Irene Richardson 

  4.  Cash Disbursements     Irene Richardson 

VII. Old Business 

A. Finance & Audit Charter review    Taylor Jones 

B. Spending Authority Matrix review    Taylor Jones 

VIII.   New Business 

A. Financial Forum Discussion     Taylor Jones 

IX. Adjournment        Taylor Jones 

 

        

Page 5 of 105Page 55 of 248



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Finance & Audit Committee Meeting 

September 26, 2017 

 

 

Voting Members Present:  Mr. Taylor Jones 

     Mr. Marty Kelsey 

 

Non-Voting Members Present: Mr. Ron Cheese 

Dr. Larry Lauridsen 

Ms. Tami Love 

     Ms. Irene Richardson 

Mr. Rich Tyler 

 

Non-Voting Member Absent:  Dr. Augusto Jamias 

 

Guests:    Ms. Angel Bennett 

Ms. Mary Fischer 

Mr. Jim Horan 

Ms. Kristy Nielson 

Ms. Kari Quickenden 

Ms. Robin Snowberger 

Mr. Darryn McGarvey, CliftonLarsonAllen via telephone 

Mr. Tyler Johnson, CliftonLarsonAllen via telephone 

 

Call Meeting to Order 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order. Mr. Kelsey thanked the Committee for changing the timing 

of the meeting so that he could attend. A motion that the meeting adjourn no later than 5:45 P.M. 

was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried. 

 

FY2017 Financial Audit Presentation 

 

Mr. Darryn McGarvey and Mr. Tyler Johnson from CliftonLarsonAllen joined the meeting via 

telephone. Mr. McGarvey said he will be on-site for the next regular Board meeting to present 

the audit to the full Board. Ms. Love distributed the draft financial statements. Mr. McGarvey 

reviewed the document and noted the clean, unmodified opinion by the auditors. He said that is 

the highest form of assurance from an independent audit firm. He said the audit reflects 2017 

was a very difficult year in operations with a 1.2% operating decrease. Mr. Johnson said the 

audit team met with Mr. Jones during the interim visit. He said the Hospital received the best 

report possible from the auditors when it comes to internal controls. Mr. McGarvey reviewed 

financial ratios.  Mr. McGarvey noted the net days in accounts receivable and the revenue cycle 

process has continued to do well. He said it is very important for the organization to keep this 

moving along well. The auditors saw a continued focus on charity care and bad debt ratios. The 

trend line has been positive over the past four years. The debt service ratio was 1.3 and the 

covenant requirement is 1.25. Mr. McGarvey said something to watch is can the Hospital hit a 

healthy number without the special purpose tax money which will be ending after fiscal year 

2018. Mr. McGarvey said if the Hospital can get back to a break-even situation, it would provide 

a lot of stability. He said FY17 obviously was not the year anyone wanted from an operations 

viewpoint but he commended Ms. Richardson, Ms. Love and Mr. Cheese in relation to 

Page 6 of 105Page 56 of 248



 

 

Minutes of the September 26, 2017 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 2 

preparation and cooperation in the audit process. Ms. Richardson thanked Mr. McGarvey and 

Mr. Johnson. She said we hope we can turn things around and make things look better next year.  

 

Approve Meeting Minutes 

 

The August 30, 2017, minutes were reviewed and no changes were made. 

 

Capital Requests FY 18 

 

Ms. Fischer reviewed capital expenditure request FY18-7 for a biological hood in the Lab. She 

said we are a sentinel location for bioterrorism for the State and they have certain requirements. 

The current hood is over thirty years old and we cannot get repair parts. Ms. Fischer said we 

obtained two quotes and the best price is included with the request. Mr. Jones noted the request 

was budgeted. The motion to approve forwarding FY18-7 to the full Board for review and 

consideration as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  

 

Ms. Fischer reviewed capital expenditure request FY18-8 for a plasma thawer replacement. She 

said the current machine is about fifteen years old and at the end of its useful life. We cannot get 

parts from the manufacturer any longer. The motion to approve forwarding FY18-8 to the full 

Board for review and consideration as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. 

Motion carried.  

 

Building and Grounds Committee Report 

 

Mr. Horan reported lint ducts were cleaned in the laundry area resulting in an improvement; 

however he feels we still need to do duct work. We are still collecting data on the behavioral 

health rooms. We are still working on storage needs and plans. Work continues on tunnel needs. 

The kick-off meeting for the CT replacement was held September 19. The Committee reviewed 

action plans for failures that could occur in the facility. Mr. Horan said he is working on a list of 

priorities. The Committee reviewed The Joint Commission findings, how to resolve issues, and 

how to keep issues resolved. The Committee voted to approve the Charter as presented. 

 

IT Report 

 

Mr. Tyler reported staff is still working on fine-tuning the phone system. They are looking at 

software for the Clinic for appointment reminders. We are being mindful of spending money so 

investigating options. Mr. Tyler said we are still reviewing the T-System and Pulse Check 

systems for the Emergency Department. We have made some updates on software on codes for 

proper billing. Mr. Tyler is working with Ms. Love on the scheduling module in Kronos.   

 

Page 7 of 105Page 57 of 248



 

 

Minutes of the September 26, 2017 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 3 

Financial Report 

 

Monthly Finance Statements & Statistical Data 

 

Ms. Richardson reviewed the narrative and financial highlights. She said we had an operating 

loss for August and year-to-date. The debt service coverage ratio was 2.49 with a covenant 

requirement of 1.25. She said we committed we would adjust our expenses accordingly and she 

feels we have been doing that. We are seeing a shift from inpatient to outpatient care which has 

become an industry trend. Mr. Cheese said there has been a change in the handling of Title 25 

patients as observation/outpatient as opposed to inpatient. She said we must continue our focus 

on decreasing expenses to help improve days of cash on hand. She commended Mr. Cheese on 

his increasing cash collections. Ms. Richardson said days of cash on hand for August was 105. 

The outlook for September shows volume and revenue coming in under budget. Mr. Jones asked 

what help staff need from the Board. Ms. Richardson said we are trying to bring salary and wage 

down through attrition but it may not be happening as quickly as expenses are increasing. Mr. 

Kelsey said the Hospital has more control over expenses than on revenue. He said he thinks 

having metrics with specific plans is the only way we can get a handle on this. Dr. Lauridsen said 

he feels we are seeing a good volume and is concerned we are not billing appropriately. He 

suggested also looking at our rates. Mr. Jones said the Providers may be busy but maybe our 

process is not efficient. Both Mr. Kelsey and Mr. Jones expressed concern with the percentage of 

the budget for salary and wages.  

 

Ms. Richardson reviewed the days in AR. She said we have seen a spike in the Clinic but they 

are working on that.  

 

Ms. Richardson reported the FTE’s per adjusted occupied bed number of 8.85. She said some 

hospitals in the state include Providers in their numbers, some don’t have any, so it’s a mixed 

bag when comparing. She thinks we should report it but maybe evaluate the number based on 

our revenue. Mr. Jones asked if this isn’t it, what report do we need? Ms. Love said she thinks 

we need to choose a good productivity model based on national averages.  

 

Ms. Love distributed the confidential budget adherence information. Ms. Richardson said if 

revenue is down, we like to see expenses down. Each department sends in their own variance for 

the month. 

 

Approve Investment Report 

 

The motion to approve to forward to the full Board for review and consideration the investment 

report for $16,992,716 as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. Motion 

carried. 

 

Other Business 

 

Mr. Cheese noted the preliminary bad debt estimate amount of $1,018,665.   

 

Mr. Cheese said $12,235.93 for Title 25 was submitted to the County and another 24,309 

submitted in September. He said that includes the 45% discount.  

 

Page 8 of 105Page 58 of 248



 

 

Minutes of the September 26, 2017 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 4 

Ms. Richardson reported $92,805 in legal fees. She said we hope some of these will start coming 

down as we work to settle and finalize outstanding suits and cases.  

 

 

New Business 

 

Finance & Audit Charter and Spending Matrix 

 

Ms. Richardson said Dr. Barbara Sowada asked if there are other reports that need to go to the 

Board that they be included in the Charter. Ms. Richardson reviewed a list of various reports to 

come before the Committee and the Board. To keep consistent with the spending matrix, Ms. 

Richardson suggested $25,000 for the capitalized amount. She said Ms. Suzan Campbell, Chief 

Legal Executive/General Counsel, is working on proposing a policy to remove the spending 

authority matrix entirely. Mr. Kelsey said he is more interested in getting it done right instead of 

getting it done fast. He would like to see it done by the end of the year. Ms. Richardson said we 

will continue as we have been doing until the process is changed. We will look at extra, separate 

meetings to discuss the Charter.  

 

 

The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, October 25 at 4:00 PM. 

 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 

 
Submitted by Cindy Nelson and Tami Love 

 

 
 

Page 9 of 105Page 59 of 248



 YTD CAPITAL 
APPROVED 

 GRANT OR 
DONATION 

REIMBURSED 
 2018 APPROVED 

BUDGET REMAINING YTD BALANCE
AS OF SEPTEMBER 2017 115,492.00      -                                 2,000,000.00      1,884,508.00                                  

CAPITAL 
REQUEST # REQUESTED ITEM/REQUESTOR

 AMOUNT 
REQUESTED COMMENTS

FY18-9 Goby Wireless Urodynamics System 20,720.00         
Dr. Wallace Curry,  Dr. Cody Christensen

FY18-10 EMC Centera 2 node upgrade 12,772.00         
Tracie Soller

TOTAL AMOUNT REQUESTED 33,492.00         -                                 -                        

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE REQUESTS

WEDNESDAY ~ OCTOBER 25, 2017

Page 10 of 105Page 60 of 248



Page 11 of 105Page 61 of 248



Page 12 of 105Page 62 of 248



Page 13 of 105Page 63 of 248



Page 14 of 105Page 64 of 248



Page 15 of 105Page 65 of 248



Page 16 of 105Page 66 of 248



Page 17 of 105Page 67 of 248



Page 18 of 105Page 68 of 248



Page 19 of 105Page 69 of 248



Page 20 of 105Page 70 of 248



Page 21 of 105Page 71 of 248



Page 22 of 105Page 72 of 248



Page 23 of 105Page 73 of 248



MHSC Capital Budget for FYE 6/30/2018

Department ITEM Approved  Purch/Amt Variance FY#

MEDICAL IMAGING C10-3V ULTRASOUND TRANSDUCER 12,762                  12,762              -                       FY18-2

RESPIRATORY PURITAN BENNETT 980 VENTILATOR TABLED 3 MOS -                       FY18-3

RESPIRATORY ARTERIAL BLOOD GAS/ELECTROLYTE ANALYZER 31,500                  31,920              420                      FY18-4

INFORMATION SERVICES VIRTUAL SERVER EXPANSION 39,281                  39,281              -                       FY18-5

INFECTION CONTROL TROPHON EPR (2) 19,526                  17,326              (2,200)                  FY18-6

LABORATORY BIOLOGICAL HOOD 9,566                    -                    (9,566)                  FY18-7

LABORATORY PLASMA THAWER 2,858                    2,857                (1)                         FY18-8

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

Total Budgeted 2,000,000 115,492          104,145       (11,347)          

Capital Expenditure Dollars Authorized 115,492     

Net Capital Outlay FYTD 2018 115,492     

Remaining Balance FY2018 Capital Budget 1,884,508  

Page 24 of 105Page 74 of 248



  Page 1 of 1 

Building and Grounds monthly report   10/19/2017 

 

BUILDING AND GROUNDS COMMITTEE 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

10/17/2017 
Trustee Committee Members Present: Ed Tardoni, Barbara Sowada (for Taylor Jones). 

Committee Members Present: Tami Love, Jim Horan 

Guests Present: Stevie Nosich, Gerry Johnston 

Minutes taken by: Cindy Nelson  

Location:   Classroom 3 

Time started: 3:00P 

                                                                                  

TOPIC DISCUSSION RESPONSIBLE ACTION TIMELINE 
Laundry Upgrade Lint has been removed from ducts resulting in improved air 

flow and cooler conditions. Further steps to relieve 

temperature issues are being considered  

Jim Horan 1. Improved steam piping and 

insulation. 

2. Construct storage space within 

Laundry area. 

3. Add extra exhaust from space.  

Review progress next 

meeting. 

Behavioral Health rooms No Discussion Clayton 

Radakovich 

To present data when available. Report back to this 

committee after 

data is compiled. 

Offsite storage  Other options are being considered for our storage needs. 

The old hospital may be an option. 

Ed Tardoni/ 

John Kolb 

Tour of old hospital to be arranged 

with selected board members, 

Facilities’ personnel and others. 

Review progress next 

meeting. 

Steam piping in tunnel Plan has been devised. Schedule for work has not been set. Jim Horan Schedule work. Review next meeting. 

CT Replacement Air-flow issues to existing room requires added investigation. 

Remediation may be in order. This will likely extend the 

timeline for this project 

Jim Horan Work with engineer and contractor 

to expedite. 

Review progress next 

meeting. 

Wyoming Department of 

Health (WDH) inspection 

review of our Medical 

Office Building (MOB) 

and 3000 College Hill 

Building (CH)  

Several items will need to be addressed for licensing by 

WDH: 

1. Return-air ducts for invasive procedure rooms. 

2. Temp-limiting devices on handwashing faucets. 

3. Aerator removal from handwashing faucets. 

4. Continuous exhaust in restrooms and soiled/wet areas. 

5. Sprinkler remediation and signage at CH 

Jim Horan/ 

Clayton 

Radakovich 

1. MOB --Meeting to decide 

precisely how many rooms to be 

included in project scope.  Then 

work with engineer to design 

and contractor to resolve.  

CH—apply for variance 

2. MOB/ CH--In-house correction. 

3. MOB/ CH--In-house correction. 

4. MOB/ CH--In-house or 

contractor resolution 

5. CH-- Contractor to resolve. 

Review progress next 

meeting. 

TJC findings review One issue remains open from TJC survey. 7 double doors to 

have positive latching installed.  

Jim Horan Work with contractors to install as 

soon as possible. 

Review progress next 

meeting. 

Itemized Maintenance 

projects. 

These projects are to be considered after the above listed 

items are resolved.  

1. Failed steam expansion joint. 

2. Collapsing retaining wall. 

3. Replace original ceilings and sprinkler heads. 

4. Seal mechanical room floor. 

Jim Horan 1. Devise time schedule for work. 

2. Engineers to create design. 

3. Devise time schedule for work. 

4. Devise time schedule for work. 

Review progress next 

meeting. 

Time Adjourned:  4:05P 

Next Meeting:  November 14; 5PM 

Respectfully Submitted:           Jim Horan 

 

Page 25 of 105Page 75 of 248



Finance and Audit Committee 

IT report 

October 2017 

Rich Tyler 

1. We are continuing to evaluate costs associated with moving to Pulsecheck ED EMR 

system or the costs associated with maintaining the current ED EMR of T-System.  We 

are finalizing numbers and should have a decision in the next few weeks. 

2. We recently moved all of our IT equipment out of the oral surgery area.  We are working 

to re-image the computers for use elsewhere in the facility.  We are also working on 

archiving the oral surgery patient records although it may take a while. 

3. We are currently evaluating off-site, cloud-based, data storage options.  We currently 

store data backups on tape media and are looking to start storing the hospital data off-

site.  It is best practice to store data off-site and encrypted.  We hope to have a few 

proposals for this project in the next month or two.  Our insurance company and third 

party IT audit firm highly recommend this project. 

4. We are evaluating the up-coming QCPR (Hospital inpatient EMR) upgrades.  We have a 

few options to look over as far as some possible new features that we could implement.  

We are also doing a hardware assessment to make sure we have the infrastructure in 

place for possible QCPR enhancements. 

Page 26 of 105Page 76 of 248



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

ROCK SPRINGS, WY 

 

 

To: Finance Committee      October 19, 2017 

From: Irene Richardson, CFO 

 

 

NARRATIVE TO SEPTEMBER 2017 FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

 

THE BOTTOM LINE.    The bottom line from operations for September was a gain of 

$137,051, compared to a gain of $287,392 in the budget.  This yields a 1.95% operating 

margin for the month compared to 3.83% in the budget. The YTD net operating loss is 

$560,385, compared to a loss of $130,044 in the budget.  This represents a YTD 

operating margin of -2.69% compared with -.59% in the budget.   

 

The total net gain for the month was $462,588, compared to a gain of $482,497 in the 

budget.  The YTD total net gain is $198,120, compared to a gain of $455,271.  This 

represents a YTD total profit margin of .95% compared with 2.06% in the budget.  

 

Annual Debt Service Coverage came in at 3.12.  The existing bond covenants require that 

we maintain Debt Service Coverage of 1.25 for compliance.   

 

 

VOLUME.  Average inpatient census for the month was 11.1; under budget and prior 

year by 6.4. YTD average census is 11.5 compared to 18.5 in the budget and 18.5 in the 

prior year. 

 

Inpatient surgeries were 13 under budget at 30 and outpatient surgeries were under 

budget by 17 at 141.   There were 6,136 outpatient visits, under budget by 622.     

 

Total ER visits were 1,319, which was under budget by 101.  There were 32 newborns in 

September, under budget by 22. Births are under budget by 23 year to date.     

  

 

REVENUE.  Revenue for the month was $13,019,611, under budget by $661,385.  

Inpatient revenue was under budget by $1,124,475, outpatient revenue was over budget 

by $573,233 and the employed Provider Clinic was under budget by $110,143. 

 

YTD total revenue was $39,127,132, under budget by $865,006.  Inpatient revenue is 

under budget by $3,409,684, outpatient revenue is over budget by $2,992,161 and the 

Provider Clinic is under budget by $447,483.  We are experiencing a shift from inpatient 

care to outpatient care.  YTD inpatient revenue is 22% of total revenue compared to 

30.2% in the prior year.   

 

Page 27 of 105Page 77 of 248



Net patient revenue for the month was $6,903,809, under budget by $457,547.  YTD net 

patient revenue was $20,482,740, under budget by $1,122,206.   

 

Deductions from revenue were booked at 47% for September compared to 46.2% in the 

budget and 42.3% for prior year.  YTD deductions from revenue are 47.7%, compared to 

46% in the budget and 43.8% for FY 2017.    

 

 

EXPENSES.  Total expenses for the month were $6,898,779, under budget by $325,534.   

Salary & Wage, Fringe Benefits, Physician Fees, Repairs & Maintenance, Other 

Operating expenses and Depreciation were under budget for September.  The following 

categories were over budget for September: 

 

 

Contract Labor – This expense is over budget by $41,522. OB, Surgery, 

Emergency Room and Ultrasound are over budget for the month.  

Purchased Services – This expense is over budget by $45,725. Legal fees are 

over budget by $92,206 and are projecting to over $674,000 for the year. 

Supplies – This expense is over budget by $125,186.  Med/Surg supplies and 

Drugs are over budget for September. 

Utilities – This expense is over budget by $11,470.  Telephone expense is over 

budget by $10,542 due to final payments to Qwest to close out the old system. 

 

 

We continue to see the effect of the recent cost savings plan in the new fiscal year.  As of 

September, the daily cash expense is $210,000, down from a high of $236,000 in last 

fiscal year. 

 

 

BALANCE SHEET.  Operating cash at month end was $12,740,173, up $404,846 from 

August.  Collections for the month of September were $6,281,763.  The Days of Cash on 

Hand for September are 106, up 1 day from August due to the decrease in expenses.  The 

existing bond covenants require that we maintain 75 days of cash on hand for 

compliance.   

   

Gross receivables at month end were $18,884,916, up $894,923 from the prior month.  

Net patient receivables at month end were $10,340,293, up $473,047 from last month.  

Days in Receivables are 45 for September, up 1 day from August.  

 

OUTLOOK FOR OCTOBER.  Inpatient volumes, including surgeries and births are 

down, projecting to come in under budget.  We continue to experience a shift from 

inpatient care to outpatient care with inpatient revenue and patient days being under 

budget.  Revenue is projecting to come in at $12.4M, which is under budget with Net 

Revenue projecting to $6.6M. Collections are projecting to come in at $6.7M, which is 

under budget.  

 

Page 28 of 105Page 78 of 248



 

With the continued decrease in volumes, expenses are also projecting to come in under 

budget.  As we head into our busy season, we hope to sustain this lower level of expenses 

and be able to achieve regular gains from the increase in revenue.  Salaries, benefits, 

consulting fees, contract labor and physician fees should decrease in Fiscal Year 2018. 

Page 29 of 105Page 79 of 248



Page 30 of 105Page 80 of 248



Page 31 of 105Page 81 of 248



Page 32 of 105Page 82 of 248



Page 33 of 105Page 83 of 248



Page 34 of 105Page 84 of 248



Page 35 of 105Page 85 of 248



Page 36 of 105Page 86 of 248



Page 37 of 105Page 87 of 248



Page 38 of 105Page 88 of 248



Page 39 of 105Page 89 of 248



Page 40 of 105Page 90 of 248



Page 41 of 105Page 91 of 248



Page 42 of 105Page 92 of 248



Page 43 of 105Page 93 of 248



Page 44 of 105Page 94 of 248



Page 45 of 105Page 95 of 248



JULY MONTHLY FYTD

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL TOTAL

Collection Agency interest income             9,938.82 

Medical Records                919.99 

Document Copy Service                140.25 

Pharmacy sales 14.22                 

Prenatal Reimbursement                 (31.88)

HPSA           35,411.30 

PALS Class                110.00 

BLS Classes                279.00 

Vending machine commissions                433.32 

Hampton & Newman Deposition                500.00 

Interlare             1,819.62 

Lifeline reclass                 (40.00)

Reduction SCHHC (from Corrected Reversal)           (1,110.56)

Pacific Steel                   33.21 

Sports Physicals             1,025.00 

County Maintenance Fund             1,187.70 

UOFU Payment  - sent to wrong venue                141.55 

Reverse Sw. Peds Dup Inv.           (2,100.00)

Solvay Occupation Med retainer 900.00               

Castle Rehab Transport 780.00               

Rocky Mountain Home Care 80.00                 

Jim Bridger Retainer 800.00               

Foundation Reimbursement Pointer 2,715.00           

Jim Bridger Physician Services 14,875.00         

Mission at Castle Rock Physician Services-Reverse Dup 3,846.00           

Tata Occupation Medicine on site 15,150.00         

Shriners Hospital 346.36               

High Desert Rural Health Clinic District Wamsutter 21,222.87         

Cafeteria sales 23,749.88         

July Totals 133,136.65    133,136.65          

AUGUST MONTHLY FYTD

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL TOTAL

Collection Agency interest income             9,750.93 

Medical Records                113.20 

Document Copy Service                   20.00 

Radiology Film Copies                     5.00 

HPSA                604.84 

BLS Classes                155.00 

Black Butte Coal                494.11 

Central Supply                   34.29 

Disproportionate Share                179.00 

Pacific Steel                169.02 

BCBS Refund Check             1,774.28 

Sports Physicals             1,300.00 

County Maintenance Fund                512.64 

UOFU Payment  - sent to wrong venue will be reversed                206.00 

Solvay Occupation Med retainer                900.00 

Castle Rehab Lab Courier 260.00               

Prenatal Classes 60.00                 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
OTHER OPERATING REVENUE - Detail

YEAR TO DATE SEPTEMBER 2017

Page 46 of 105Page 96 of 248



Jim Bridger Retainer 1,600.00           

Jim Bridger Physician Services 16,480.00         

Tata Occupation Medicine on site 13,050.00         

High Desert Rural Health Clinic District Wamsutter 18,438.39         

Cafeteria sales 32,323.35         

August Totals 98,430.05      231,566.70          

SEPTEMBER MONTHLY FYTD

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL TOTAL

Collection Agency interest income             7,161.16 

Medical Records                628.70 

Radiology Film Copies                     5.00 

Pharmacy sales                   86.05 

ACLS/BLS Classes                555.00 

HEALTH CARE SERVICES                     0.03 

Reclass Black Lung/Clinic               (494.11)

Central Supply                626.68 

Meaningful Use           19,208.52 

Interlare           12,489.95 

BCBS Refund Check               (747.80)

U OF U Payment  - sent to us by mistake.                   41.20 

Sports Physicals                100.00 

County Maintenance Fund           10,297.70 

Vending Machine Refunds                158.99 

Shriners                346.36 

Solvay Occupation Med retainer                900.00 

Castle Rock             3,749.85 

Jim Bridger Retainer 800.00               

Jim Bridger Physician Services 11,730.00         

Sweetwater Peds 1,280.00           

Tata Occupation Medicine on site 13,050.00         

High Desert Rural Health Clinic District Wamsutter 23,604.96         

Foundation 1,123.66           

Cafeteria sales 25,319.18         

SEPTEMBER Totals 132,021.08    363,587.78          

Page 47 of 105Page 97 of 248



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

ROCK SPRINGS, WY 

 

To: Finance Committee      October 19, 2017 

From: Irene Richardson, CFO 

 

PROVIDER CLINIC – SEPTEMBER 2017    

 

THE CLINIC BOTTOM LINE.    The bottom line for the Provider Clinic for 

September was a loss of $436,964, compared to a loss of $578,785 in the budget. The 

YTD net operating loss is $1,838,330, compared to a loss of $2,110,223 in the Budget.   

 

VOLUME.  Total visits were 4,245 for September, under budget by 562 visits. YTD 

patient visits are 13,215, under budget by 1,002 visits. 

 

REVENUE.  Revenue for the Clinic for September was $1,340,088, under budget by 

$110,143.    YTD revenue was $3,897,659, under Budget by $447,483.  The Clinic 

physicians also generate hospital revenue in addition to their office revenue.  This is 

called enterprise revenue, which consists of various sources, including Lab and Medical 

Imaging and Surgery.  The amount of gross enterprise revenue generated for September 

from the Clinic is $3,981,729.  This equates to $2,070,499 of net enterprise revenue with 

an impact to the bottom line from enterprise revenue of $191,935.  The gross enterprise 

revenue represents 31% of the total Hospital revenue for September.    

 

Net patient revenue for the Clinic for September was $784,851, under budget by $16,198.  

YTD net patient revenue was $2,248,536, which was under budget by $154,382.  YTD 

net patient revenue is 57.7% of gross revenue compared with 55.3% in the budget and 

53.9% in the prior year.   

 

Deductions from revenue for the Clinic were booked at 42.3% for September.  

Historically, the Clinic has a more favorable payor mix than the hospital.   The Clinic has 

a much larger Commercial insurance population than the hospital and a smaller 

Medicare, Medicaid and Self Pay population than the hospital.  In September, the YTD 

payor mix was as follows; Commercial Insurance and Blue Cross consisted of 56.47% of 

revenue, Medicare and Medicaid consisted of 33.77% of revenue and Self Pay consisted 

of 6.18% of revenue. 

 

EXPENSES.  Total expenses for the month were $1,277,277, which was under budget 

by $154,557.   YTD expenses were $4,247,836, which was under budget by $421,305. 

The majority of the expenses consist of Salaries and Benefits; which is about 85.5% of 

YTD total expenses.   

 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT.   The Provider Clinic revenue plus enterprise revenue 

consists of 40.9% of total hospital gross patient revenue for September.    

Page 48 of 105Page 98 of 248



Page 49 of 105Page 99 of 248



Page 50 of 105Page 100 of 248



Page 51 of 105Page 101 of 248



Page 52 of 105Page 102 of 248



Page 53 of 105Page 103 of 248



Page 54 of 105Page 104 of 248



Page 55 of 105Page 105 of 248



Page 56 of 105Page 106 of 248



Page 57 of 105Page 107 of 248



Page 58 of 105Page 108 of 248



Page 59 of 105Page 109 of 248



Page 60 of 105Page 110 of 248



Page 61 of 105Page 111 of 248



Page 62 of 105Page 112 of 248



Page 63 of 105Page 113 of 248



Page 64 of 105Page 114 of 248



Page 65 of 105Page 115 of 248



Page 66 of 105Page 116 of 248



Page 67 of 105Page 117 of 248



Page 68 of 105Page 118 of 248



18 Board Graphs September 10/18/2017 5:01 PM

   MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
   "DASHBOARD" GRAPHS

SEPTEMBER 2017

  FYE 2017 ACTUAL   FYE 2018 BUDGET   FYE 2018 ACTUAL

AVERAGE ACUTE CENSUS ER IP+OP VISITS

INPATIENT CHARGES OUTPATIENT CHARGES

TOTAL NET OPERATING REVENUE OPERATING EXPENSE

AVERAGE CHARGE PER ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY AVERAGE CHARGE PER OUTPATIENT VISIT (Inc. ER)

AVERAGE NET OPERATING REVENUE PER ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY    AVERAGE OPERATING EXPENSE PER ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY

0

5

10

15

20

25

0
200
400
600
800

1,000
1,200
1,400
1,600
1,800

$0
$500,000

$1,000,000
$1,500,000
$2,000,000
$2,500,000
$3,000,000
$3,500,000
$4,000,000
$4,500,000
$5,000,000

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$0
$1,000,000
$2,000,000
$3,000,000
$4,000,000
$5,000,000
$6,000,000
$7,000,000
$8,000,000
$9,000,000

$0
$1,000,000
$2,000,000
$3,000,000
$4,000,000
$5,000,000
$6,000,000
$7,000,000
$8,000,000
$9,000,000

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

$14,000

$0
$100
$200
$300
$400
$500
$600
$700
$800
$900

$1,000

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

$7,000

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

$7,000

Page 69 of 105Page 119 of 248



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY

DETAIL STATISTICS

September 2016

STATISTICS Actual Budget PY YTD YTD YTD YTD
Sep-17 Sep-17 Sep-16 Sep-17 Sep-16 Sep-15 Sep-14

Case Mix
Medicare 1.3733 1.5619 1.5619 1.2844 1.4576 1.3752 1.1602
All payers 0.9709 0.9221 0.9221 0.8774 0.8626 0.8419 0.8965

Admissions
Med 60 68 68 184 228 264 254
ICU 21 31 31 69 97 90 103
Surgery 10 9 9 20 26 30 38
OB 31 56 56 125 156 147 157
Newborn 29 55 55 122 148 145 144

Total Admissions 151 219 219 520 655 676 696

Discharges
Med 64 86 86 209 259 287 242
ICU 18 17 17 37 50 46 85
Surgery 12 12 12 27 38 48 64
OB 31 55 55 125 150 147 154
Newborn 32 54 54 122 145 145 139

Total Discharges 157 224 224 520 642 673 684

Patient Days:
Med 183 327 327 587 1,112 1,072 821
ICU 61 75 75 152 242 259 312
Surgery 42 31 31 104 99 137 147
OB 48 93 93 219 248 239 243
Newborn 50 99 99 217 238 221 215

Total Patient Days 384 625 625 1,279 1,939 1,928 1,738

Observation Bed Days 108 92 92 346 272 219 151

Surgery Statistics:
IP Surgeries 30 43 43 86 123 104 123
OP Surgeries 141 158 158 452 417 427 425

Outpatient Visits:
X-ray 678 690 690 2,117 2,111 2,107 2,111
Mammography 152 111 111 386 360 405 468
Ultrasound 293 254 254 855 779 782 799
Cat Scan 443 407 407 1,304 1,198 1,146 915
MRI 119 113 113 327 301 318 323
Nuclear Medicine 65 40 40 152 108 120 74
PET Scan 18 15 15 39 32 15 21
Laboratory 2,280 2,892 2,892 7,655 9,085 7,808 7,069
Histology 164 161 161 463 412 394 479
Respiratory Therapy 255 260 260 761 735 693 604
Cardiovascular 433 426 426 1,257 1,396 1,356 1,117
Sleep Lab 27 28 28 88 61 55 51
Cardiac Rehab 300 474 474 1,012 1,418 1,224 1,145
Physical Therapy 194 211 211 626 679 736 768
Dialysis 313 224 224 923 712 775 860
Medical Oncology 152 192 192 483 571 671 322
Radiation Oncology 250 260 260 728 889 999 392
Total Outpatients Visits 6,136 6,758 6,758 19,176 20,847 19,604 17,518

Clinic Visits - Primary Care 3,771 4,293 4,581 11,756 13,196 16,658 14,453
Clinic Visits - Specialty Clinics 474 514 655 1,459 1,595 1,512 1,596

ER visits admitted 140 135 135 399 433 425 431
ER visits Discharged 1,179 1,285 1,285 3,678 3,790 3,902 4,015
Total ER visits 1,319 1,420 1,420 4,077 4,223 4,327 4,446

Page 70 of 105Page 120 of 248



HOSPITAL CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 18.61% 20.68% 18.37%
Blue Cross 21.56% 22.22% 23.66%
Medicaid 7.35% 8.15% 9.99%
Medicare 41.56% 37.68% 36.77%
Self Pay  9.26% 8.16% 9.42%
Other 1.66% 3.11% 1.79%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

CLINIC CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 24.44% 27.01% 28.94%
Blue Cross 29.94% 29.46% 30.49%
Medicaid 12.16% 13.45% 14.70%
Medicare 26.14% 23.20% 19.07%
Self Pay  6.62% 6.14% 6.18%
Other 0.70% 0.74% 0.62%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

ORTHO CLINIC CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 28.27% 43.04% 39.50%
Blue Cross 30.84% 26.05% 27.91%
Medicaid 5.28% 5.15% 6.32%
Medicare 25.32% 20.39% 23.02%
Self Pay  6.69% 3.80% 2.71%
Other 3.60% 1.57% 0.54%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

COMBINED CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 19.30% 21.57% 19.86%
Blue Cross 22.44% 22.90% 24.39%
Medicaid 7.72% 8.55% 10.34%
Medicare 39.95% 36.18% 34.80%
Self Pay  8.98% 7.91% 8.96%
Other 1.61% 2.89% 1.65%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY

Three months ended September 30, 2017
PAYOR MIX DATA

Page 71 of 105Page 121 of 248



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
DAYS IN A/R

09/30/17

HOSPITAL AR DAYS
Sep-16 52
Oct-16 49
Nov-16 51
Dec-16 51
Jan-17 52
Feb-17 54
Mar-17 55
Apr-17 53
May-17 51
Jun-17 53
Jul-17 45
Aug-17 43
Sep-17 44

CLINIC AR DAYS
Sep-16 70
Oct-16 68
Nov-16 59
Dec-16 63
Jan-17 60
Feb-17 62
Mar-17 56
Apr-17 57
May-17 64
Jun-17 56
Jul-17 50
Aug-17 50
Sep-17 52

ORTHO AR DAYS
Sep-16 53
Oct-16 52
Nov-16 63
Dec-16 53
Jan-17 41
Feb-17 51
Mar-17 53
Apr-17 41
May-17 51
Jun-17 53
Jul-17 47
Aug-17 50
Sep-17 54

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Sep-16 Nov-16 Jan-17 Mar-17 May-17 Jul-17 Sep-17

70 68 

59 
63 

60 62 
56 57 

64 

56 
50 50 52 

CLINIC AR DAYS

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Sep-16 Nov-16 Jan-17 Mar-17 May-17 Jul-17 Sep-17

53 52 

63 

53 

41 

51 53 

41 

51 53 
47 50 

54 

ORTHO AR DAYS

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Sep-16 Nov-16 Jan-17 Mar-17 May-17 Jul-17 Sep-17

52 49 51 51 52 54 55 53 51 53 

45 43 44 

HOSPITAL AR DAYS

Page 72 of 105Page 122 of 248



National
MHSC MHSC WYOMING Rural MHSC

Current Month FYTD All Hospitals < $90M Net Rev. Benchmark

FTEs Per AOB 8.84 8.74 6.60 4.63 6.60

Total FTEs 449.73             459.48                  
     Hospital only 382.50             387.25                  
     Clinic only 67.23               72.23                    

Change in FTE's to meet Benchmark (110.48)         

Change in MONTHLY Gross 
Revenue to meet Benchmark 2,750,000$   

Summary Report - Variance on MHSC FTE's Per Adjusted Occupied Bed

For The Month ending:   September 2017

Page 73 of 105Page 123 of 248



18 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 1 of 5 10/18/2017 4:33 PM

                          MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY

 Variance
PPE 9/3/2017 9/17/2017 10/1/2017 Variance YTD from budget

BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease
AVG CENSUS 18.00 12.4 11.4 11.3 (6.7)                -                  0.07                     11.5 (6.5)
ER VISITS (Avg Day) 46                  48               42               45               (0.9)                2.71                -                       44.4 (1.1)
SURGERIES (IP+OP) 84                  68 67 88 3.8                 21.00              -                       543.0
BIRTHS 20                  14 21 10 (9.9)                -                  11.00                   127.0
CHARGES -IP  $000 1,860             1313 1247 1395 (465.0)           148.00            -                       9060.0
                 -OP $000 4,416             4963 4131 5263 847.0            1,132.00        -                       32150.0
                 -TOTAL $000 6,276             6276 5378 6658 382.0            1,280.00        -                       41210.0
Adjusted Patient Days 850                832                  686                  754                  (96.2)             (68.37)             -                       5113.3

Paid FTEs (Including Contract)

600 MEDICAL FLOOR 30.8           24.3            22.9            25.1            (6.5)                2.16                -                       25.2 (5.6)
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 8.0             7.9              9.3              4.7              (0.1)                -                  4.59                     6.4 (1.6)
610 OB FLOOR 5.9             5.2              5.6              5.1              (0.7)                -                  0.49                     5.6 (0.3)
611 NURSERY 7.3             6.3              6.9              5.9              (1.0)                -                  0.93                     6.5 (0.8)
612 LABOR & DELIVERY 6.1             5.8              6.0              5.3              (0.4)                -                  0.68                     5.8 (0.3)
620 ICU 13.9           12.5            13.1            14.4            (1.4)                1.33                -                       13.4 (0.5)
630 OR 13.3           13.4            12.5            15.6            0.1                 3.04                -                       14.0 0.7
631 SAME DAY SURGERY 7.1             5.2              5.4              5.7              (1.9)                0.24                -                       6.0 (1.1)
633 RECOVERY 2.0             2.6              2.8              1.6              0.6                 -                  1.16                     2.9 0.9
634 CENTRAL STERILE 3.1             2.9              2.7              2.8              (0.2)                0.07                -                       2.8 (0.3)
640 DIALYSIS 5.0             5.0              4.9              5.0              (0.0)                0.06                -                       5.0 (0.0)
650 ER 25.6           22.3            21.6            23.7            (3.3)                2.01                -                       24.4 (1.2)
651 TRAUMA 1.0             1.5              1.9              2.0              0.5                 0.07                -                       1.5 0.5
652 SANE 0.5             0.7              1.0              1.2              0.2                 0.12                -                       1.0 0.5
660 RADIATION ONC 6.6             6.1              5.9              6.0              (0.5)                0.06                -                       6.3 (0.3)
661 MEDICAL ONC 5.5             5.0              4.6              5.2              (0.5)                0.61                -                       5.3 (0.2)
700 LABORATORY 29.5           29.6            29.1            29.4            0.1                 0.28                -                       29.6 0.1
701 HISTOLOGY 2.0             1.9              2.0              2.0              (0.1)                -                  0.04                     2.0 (0.0)
702 BLOOD BANK 1.0             1.1              1.1              1.1              0.1                 -                  0.01                     1.0 0.0
710 RADIOLOGY 7.7             8.9              9.6              9.0              1.2                 -                  0.65                     8.6 0.9
711 MAMMOGRPAHY 2.0             1.1              1.0              1.1              (0.9)                0.15                -                       1.1 (0.9)
712 ULTRASOUND 3.6             5.5              5.2              4.6              1.9                 -                  0.62                     4.6 1.0
713 NUC MED 1.9             1.6              1.6              1.7              (0.3)                0.12                -                       1.7 (0.2)
714 CAT SCAN 5.1             4.8              3.5              3.9              (0.3)                0.39                -                       4.8 (0.3)
715 MRI 1.0             1.0              1.1              1.1              (0.0)                0.02                -                       1.1 0.1
716 PET SCAN 0.1             -              0.2              0.1              (0.1)                -                  0.09                     0.1 (0.0)
720 RESPIRATORY 6.1             5.2              5.7              5.5              (0.9)                -                  0.22                     5.5 (0.6)
721 SLEEP LAB 1.8             1.8              1.2              1.5              (0.0)                0.31                -                       1.4 (0.4)
722 CARDIO 2.8             2.8              2.6              2.8              (0.0)                0.14                -                       2.8 (0.0)
723 CARDIAC REHAB 2.4             2.2              2.3              2.4              (0.2)                0.00                -                       2.4 (0.0)
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY 4.0             3.5              3.6              3.7              (0.5)                0.08                -                       3.6 (0.4)
780 EDUCATION 2.5             2.3              2.5              2.4              (0.2)                -                  0.18                     2.5 (0.0)
781 SOCIAL SERVICES 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 -                  -                       1.0 0.0
782 QUALITY 5.5             5.3              5.5              5.8              (0.2)                0.31                -                       5.2 (0.3)
783 INFECTION CONTROL 1.0             1.5              1.4              1.5              0.5                 0.06                -                       1.3 0.3
784 ACCREDITATION 2.0             2.0              2.0              2.0              (0.0)                -                  -                       2.0 (0.0)
786 NURSING INFORMATICS 3.0             3.0              3.0              3.0              0.0                 0.02                -                       3.0 0.0
790 HEALTH INFORMATION 11.7           12.3            12.5            12.3            0.6                 -                  0.18                     12.3 0.6
791 CASE MANAGEMENT 5.0             4.2              4.0              4.2              (0.8)                0.24                -                       4.4 (0.6)
800 MAINTENANCE 11.0           10.8            11.0            11.0            (0.2)                0.02                -                       10.4 (0.6)
801 HOUSEKEEPING 23.5           24.3            23.9            22.6            0.8                 -                  1.31                     23.5 0.0
802 LAUNDRY 6.5             4.6              4.6              6.3              (1.9)                1.68                -                       5.2 (1.3)
803 BIO MED 2.0             1.1              1.0              1.0              (0.9)                0.03                -                       1.0 (1.0)
810 SECURITY 8.1             6.8              7.2              8.1              (1.3)                0.96                -                       7.5 (0.6)
850 PURCHASING 5.0             4.9              4.8              4.8              (0.1)                0.03                -                       4.9 (0.1)
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY 3.0             3.0              3.0              3.0              -                 -                  0.02                     3.0 0.0
870 DIETARY 17.6           16.7            16.6            16.4            (0.9)                -                  0.16                     17.0 (0.6)
871 DIETICIANS 1.3             1.5              1.5              1.4              0.2                 -                  0.10                     1.4 0.1
900 ADMINISTRATION 6.0             5.0              5.0              5.0              (1.0)                -                  -                       5.0 (1.0)
901 COMM SVC 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 -                  -                       1.0 (0.0)
902 MED STAFF SVC 2.0             2.0              2.0              2.0              -                 -                  -                       2.0 0.0
903 MHSC FOUNDATION 1.5             1.0              1.0              1.3              (0.5)                0.33                -                       1.1 (0.4)
904 VOLUNTEER SRV 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 -                  -                       1.0 0.0
905 NURSING ADMIN 5.3             6.1              5.3              4.7              0.8                 -                  0.57                     5.7 0.4
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 -                  -                       1.0 0.0
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS 8.0             8.1              8.1              8.0              0.1                 -                  0.09                     8.1 0.1
920 HUMAN RESOURCES 4.7             4.9              3.7              3.6              0.2                 -                  0.08                     4.4 (0.3)

CHANGE FROM
LAST PAY PERIOD

Page 74 of 105Page 124 of 248



18 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 2 of 5 10/18/2017 4:33 PM

PPE 9/3/2017 9/17/2017 10/1/2017 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

930 FISCAL SERVICES 5.0             4.8              4.8              4.8              (0.2)                0.00                -                       4.8 (0.2)
940 BUSINESS OFFICE 14.8           14.6            14.3            14.7            (0.2)                0.39                -                       14.6 (0.2)
941 ADMITTING 13.4           14.3            14.4            15.2            0.9                 0.85                -                       14.5 1.1
942 COMMUNICATION 2.9             3.2              3.3              3.1              0.4                 -                  0.18                     3.1 0.2
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING 4.0             3.9              3.8              4.0              (0.1)                0.20                -                       3.9 (0.1)
949 DENKER 3.8             3.3              2.0              2.5              (0.5)                0.44                -                       3.0 (0.8)
950 OLIVER 3.7             3.0              3.0              3.0              (0.7)                -                  0.01                     3.1 (0.6)
951 JOHNSON 4.3             3.2              3.0              2.5              (1.1)                -                  0.57                     4.1 (0.2)
953 STEWART 1.0             -              -              -              (1.0)                -                  -                       0.0 (1.0)
954 WHEELER 2.0             1.9              2.0              2.0              (0.1)                0.01                -                       1.9 (0.1)
955 CHOU 1.0             1.0              1.5              -              -                 -                  1.50                     0.9 (0.1)
956 KATTAN 2.0             2.7              1.9              1.7              0.7                 -                  0.19                     2.5 0.5
958 VERONESE 2.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.0)                -                  -                       1.1 (0.9)
959 GREWAL 2.0             2.0              2.0              2.0              -                 -                  0.00                     2.1 0.1
960 SANDERS 2.0             2.1              2.1              2.2              0.1                 0.03                -                       2.1 0.1
961 DANSIE 1.5             2.0              2.0              2.1              0.5                 0.07                -                       2.1 0.6
962 BOWERS 1.5             1.8              1.8              1.6              0.3                 -                  0.21                     1.7 0.2
963 LONG 1.5             0.8              0.9              0.9              (0.7)                0.03                -                       1.6 0.1
964 JAKE JOHNSON 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 -                  -                       1.0 0.0
965 DOLCE 1.0             1.1              0.6              1.0              0.1                 0.40                -                       1.0 (0.0)
966 OCC MED 2.0             2.2              2.1              2.1              0.2                 0.02                -                       2.1 0.1
968 GILMARTIN 2.0             1.6              1.5              1.5              (0.4)                0.00                -                       1.5 (0.5)
969 PAWAR 2.0             2.0              2.0              2.0              -                 0.00                -                       2.0 0.0
970 CROFTS 1.3             1.1              1.0              1.0              (0.2)                -                  -                       1.0 (0.3)
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC 1.5             1.5              1.6              1.6              0.0                 -                  0.04                     1.6 0.1
972 FARSON CLINIC -             -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       0.0 0.0
973 LAURIDSEN 1.5             0.9              0.9              0.9              (0.6)                -                  -                       0.9 (0.6)
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING 24.9           19.2            18.1            18.8            (5.7)                0.73                -                       19.7 (5.2)
975 NEUPANE 2.0             2.0              2.0              2.0              0.0                 0.03                -                       2.0 0.0
976 LEHMAN 1.5             0.8              0.7              0.8              (0.7)                0.10                -                       0.8 (0.7)
978 HOSPITALIST 4.2             5.2              8.9              3.6              1.0                 -                  5.30                     5.4 1.2
981 CROFT 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 -                  -                       1.3 0.3
982 CHRISTENSEN 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 -                  -                       0.6 (0.4)
983 MACK 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 -                  -                       1.0 0.0
984 FRANKS 1.3             1.0              1.0              1.0              (0.3)                -                  -                       1.0 (0.3)
985 NELSON -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       0.0 0.0
986 BONGIORNO 1.0             1.0              1.5              -              -                 -                  1.50                     0.9 (0.1)
988 CURRY 3.5             3.9              3.7              3.8              0.4                 0.09                -                       3.6 0.1
989 SHAMO -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       0.0 0.0
991 JAMIAS 1.3             1.0              1.0              1.0              (0.3)                -                  -                       1.0 (0.3)
992 ASPER 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 -                  -                       1.2 0.2
993 LIU 2.0             2.0              2.0              2.0              -                 0.01                -                       2.0 0.0
994 DUCK 1.5             1.2              -              1.5              (0.3)                1.51                -                       0.9 (0.6)
995 A. BROWN 2.0             2.0              2.0              2.1              -                 0.04                -                       2.1 0.1
996 SARETTE 0.6             -              0.7              -              (0.6)                -                  0.70                     0.3 (0.3)

TOTAL Paid FTEs 483.4         453.2          451.0          448.5          (34.9)         -                  2.49                     459.5           (23.9)            
TOTAL WORKED FTEs 439.9         413.8          388.8          417.1          (26.1)         28.26              -                       406.7           (33.2)            

WORKED % Paid 91% 91% 86% 93% 2% 0.07                -                       89% (0.0)                  

CONTRACT FTES (Inc above) 3.0 10.6 8.4 8.8 7.6             0.41            -                  10.0             7.0               

GROSS EMPLOYEE PAYROLL 1,599,017  1,453,741   1,404,799   1,371,994   (145,276)    -                  32,804.96           10,218,454     

 Average Employee Hourly Rate $41.35 $40.09 $38.94 $38.24 ($1.25) -                  0.70                     #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Benchmark Paid FTEs 6.63           7.63            9.21            8.33            1.00           -              0.88                6.29 (0.34)            

per  Adj. Occupied Bed (APD)

WORKED FTEs (Including Contract)

600 MEDICAL FLOOR 28.0           21.7            20.6            23.2            (4.8)                2.59                -                       22.6 (5.4)
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 7.3             7.4              7.9              4.7              (2.6)                -                  3.24                     6.0 (1.3)
610 OB FLOOR 5.4             5.0              5.2              4.7              (0.6)                -                  0.43                     5.0 (0.4)

Page 75 of 105Page 125 of 248



18 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 3 of 5 10/18/2017 4:33 PM

PPE 9/3/2017 9/17/2017 10/1/2017 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

611 NURSERY 6.6             5.9              6.5              5.6              (1.1)                -                  0.87                     6.0 (0.7)
612 LABOR & DELIVERY 5.6             5.4              5.7              5.0              (0.6)                -                  0.66                     5.3 (0.3)
620 ICU 12.6           11.6            11.5            13.9            1.3                 2.42                -                       11.5 (1.1)
630 OR 12.1           13.1            10.7            15.2            3.1                 4.59                -                       12.9 0.8
631 SAME DAY SURGERY 6.5             5.0              4.5              5.1              (1.3)                0.64                -                       5.5 (0.9)
633 RECOVERY 1.8             2.6              1.6              1.5              (0.3)                -                  0.07                     2.2 0.3
634 CENTRAL STERILE 2.8             2.7              2.4              2.7              (0.1)                0.29                -                       2.5 (0.3)
640 DIALYSIS 4.6             4.4              4.4              4.5              (0.0)                0.14                -                       4.5 (0.1)
650 ER 23.3           21.8            20.9            22.0            (1.3)                1.14                -                       22.0 (1.3)
651 TRAUMA 0.9             1.2              1.8              1.8              0.9                 0.07                -                       1.3 0.4
652 SANE 0.5             0.5              1.0              1.2              0.7                 0.12                -                       0.8 0.4
660 RADIATION ONC 6.0             5.9              4.6              5.1              (0.9)                0.55                -                       5.4 (0.6)
661 MEDICAL ONC 5.0             5.0              3.7              5.0              0.0                 1.33                -                       4.6 (0.4)
700 LABORATORY 26.8           26.1            25.6            27.4            0.5                 1.71                -                       26.4 (0.4)
701 HISTOLOGY 1.8             1.7              1.8              1.7              (0.1)                -                  0.10                     1.8 (0.0)
702 BLOOD BANK 0.9             1.1              1.1              1.1              0.2                 -                  0.01                     1.0 0.1
710 RADIOLOGY 7.0             8.2              8.4              8.2              1.2                 -                  0.18                     7.6 0.6
711 MAMMOGRPAHY 1.8             1.1              0.8              1.1              (0.7)                0.31                -                       1.0 (0.8)
712 ULTRASOUND 3.3             4.8              4.8              4.3              1.0                 -                  0.54                     4.1 0.9
713 NUC MED 1.7             1.6              1.3              1.7              0.0                 0.42                -                       1.5 (0.2)
714 CAT SCAN 4.6             3.9              3.1              3.9              (0.8)                0.78                -                       4.3 (0.4)
715 MRI 0.9             1.0              0.9              1.1              0.1                 0.20                -                       1.0 0.1
716 PET SCAN 0.1             -              0.2              0.1              0.0                 -                  0.09                     0.1 (0.0)
720 RESPIRATORY 5.6             4.5              5.0              5.2              (0.3)                0.28                -                       4.8 (0.7)
721 SLEEP LAB 1.6             1.8              0.7              1.5              (0.2)                0.75                -                       1.3 (0.3)
722 CARDIO 2.5             2.4              2.2              2.6              0.0                 0.34                -                       2.4 (0.1)
723 CARDIAC REHAB 2.2             2.0              2.0              2.1              (0.1)                0.14                -                       2.1 (0.1)
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY 3.6             3.2              3.2              3.5              (0.2)                0.30                -                       3.3 (0.3)
780 PATIENT ED 2.3             2.1              2.3              2.2              (0.1)                -                  0.14                     2.2 (0.1)
781 SOCIAL SERVICES 0.9             0.9              0.9              1.0              0.1                 0.06                -                       1.0 0.0
782 QUALITY & ACCREDIT 5.0             5.1              5.0              5.0              (0.0)                -                  0.09                     4.6 (0.4)
783 INFECTION CONTROL 0.9             1.5              1.3              1.5              0.5                 0.16                -                       1.2 0.3
784 COMPLIANCE 1.8             1.8              1.8              1.9              0.1                 0.09                -                       1.8 0.0
786 NURSING INFORMATICS 2.7             2.4              2.8              3.0              0.3                 0.27                -                       2.7 (0.0)
790 HEALTH INFORMATION 10.6           10.7            10.9            11.2            0.5                 0.28                -                       10.8 0.1
791 CASE MANAGEMENT 4.6             3.9              3.6              3.9              (0.6)                0.30                -                       3.8 (0.8)
800 MAINTENANCE 10.0           9.9              10.0            10.7            0.6                 0.65                -                       9.4 (0.6)
801 HOUSEKEEPING 21.4           21.9            19.5            20.9            (0.4)                1.44                -                       21.1 (0.3)
802 LAUNDRY 5.9             4.3              4.1              6.0              0.1                 1.86                -                       4.9 (1.0)
803 BIO MED 1.8             0.8              0.9              1.0              (0.8)                0.14                -                       0.8 (1.0)
810 SECURITY 7.4             5.8              6.8              7.6              0.2                 0.83                -                       6.4 (1.0)
850 PURCHASING 4.6             4.3              3.8              3.9              (0.7)                0.08                -                       4.1 (0.4)
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY 2.7             2.3              2.8              2.7              (0.0)                -                  0.14                     2.5 (0.2)
870 DIETARY 16.1           15.1            14.9            15.9            (0.1)                1.02                -                       15.3 (0.7)
871 DIETICIANS 1.2             1.4              1.4              1.4              0.2                 -                  0.01                     1.3 0.1
900 ADMINISTRATION 5.5             4.9              4.4              4.0              (1.5)                -                  0.40                     4.3 (1.1)
901 COMM SVC 0.9             1.0              0.9              0.8              (0.1)                -                  0.10                     0.9 0.0
902 MED STAFF SVC 1.8             1.8              1.3              2.0              0.2                 0.73                -                       1.8 (0.1)
903 MHSC FOUNDATION 1.4             1.0              0.9              1.1              (0.2)                0.23                -                       1.1 (0.3)
904 VOLUNTEER SRV 0.9             1.0              0.9              0.5              (0.4)                -                  0.40                     0.8 (0.1)
905 NURSING ADMIN 4.8             5.8              4.6              4.4              (0.4)                -                  0.13                     5.1 0.2
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT 0.9             1.0              0.9              0.5              (0.4)                -                  0.40                     0.8 (0.1)
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS 7.3             7.0              7.1              7.8              0.6                 0.74                -                       7.2 (0.1)
920 HUMAN RESOURCES 4.3             4.5              2.9              3.6              (0.7)                0.69                -                       4.0 (0.2)
930 FISCAL SERVICES 4.6             4.2              4.2              4.0              (0.6)                -                  0.24                     4.2 (0.3)
940 BUSINESS OFFICE 13.5           13.4            11.2            13.7            0.3                 2.48                -                       12.8 (0.7)
941 ADMITTING 12.2           13.5            13.2            13.5            1.3                 0.29                -                       13.3 1.1
942 COMMUNICATION 2.6             2.8              2.5              2.8              0.2                 0.27                -                       2.7 0.1
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING 3.6             3.6              3.1              3.8              0.2                 0.70                -                       3.5 (0.2)
949 DENKER 3.5             1.9              1.8              2.4              (1.0)                0.66                -                       2.4 (1.0)
950 OLIVER 3.4             2.7              2.6              2.9              (0.4)                0.32                -                       2.7 (0.6)
951 JOHNSON 3.9             3.2              2.7              2.4              (1.5)                -                  0.30                     3.7 (0.2)
953 STEWART 0.9             -              -              -              (0.9)                -                  -                       0.0 (0.9)
954 WHEELER 1.8             1.9              1.6              1.5              (0.3)                -                  0.12                     1.7 (0.1)
955 CHOU 0.9             1.0              0.2              -              (0.9)                -                  0.20                     0.7 (0.2)
956 KATTAN 1.8             2.7              1.4              1.6              (0.2)                0.23                -                       2.1 0.3
958 VERONESE 1.8             1.0              0.9              0.6              (1.2)                -                  0.25                     0.7 (1.1)
959 GREWAL 1.8             1.0              1.7              1.9              0.0                 0.14                -                       1.7 (0.1)
960 SANDERS 1.8             2.0              2.1              1.7              (0.2)                -                  0.44                     1.9 0.0
961 DANSIE 1.4             1.6              1.9              2.1              0.7                 0.23                -                       1.8 0.5
962 BOWERS 1.4             1.3              1.2              1.6              0.3                 0.41                -                       1.4 0.0

Page 76 of 105Page 126 of 248



18 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 4 of 5 10/18/2017 4:33 PM

PPE 9/3/2017 9/17/2017 10/1/2017 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

963 LONG 1.4             0.8              0.8              0.9              (0.5)                0.15                -                       1.3 (0.1)
964 JAKE JOHNSON 0.9             1.0              0.9              0.9              (0.0)                -                  -                       0.8 (0.1)
965 DOLCE 0.9             0.6              0.5              1.0              0.1                 0.50                -                       0.8 (0.1)
966 OCC MED 1.8             2.2              1.6              1.8              0.0                 0.28                -                       1.9 0.1
968 GILMARTIN 1.8             1.5              1.5              1.0              (0.8)                -                  0.50                     1.3 (0.5)
969 PAWAR 1.8             1.4              1.7              1.8              (0.0)                0.10                -                       1.6 (0.3)
970 CROFTS 1.2             0.9              0.9              0.9              (0.3)                -                  -                       0.8 (0.4)
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC 1.4             1.4              1.5              1.5              0.1                 -                  0.04                     1.4 0.1
972 FARSON CLINIC -             -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       0.0 0.0
973 LAURIDSEN 1.4             0.9              0.8              0.9              (0.5)                0.13                -                       0.8 (0.5)
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING 22.7           18.1            15.3            18.0            (4.6)                2.71                -                       17.6 (5.0)
975 NEUPANE 1.8             2.0              1.3              1.6              (0.2)                0.33                -                       1.7 (0.1)
976 LEHMAN 1.4             0.7              0.6              0.8              (0.6)                0.20                -                       0.7 (0.7)
978 HOSPITALIST 3.8             5.2              5.4              3.6              (0.2)                -                  1.80                     4.9 1.1
981 CROFT 0.9             1.0              0.8              0.8              (0.1)                -                  -                       0.8 (0.1)
982 CHRISTENSEN 0.9             0.8              1.0              1.0              0.1                 -                  -                       0.5 (0.4)
983 MACK 0.9             1.0              0.8              1.0              0.1                 0.20                -                       0.7 (0.2)
984 FRANKS 1.2             1.0              0.6              1.0              (0.2)                0.40                -                       0.9 (0.3)
986 BONGIORNO 0.9             1.0              0.2              -              (0.9)                -                  0.20                     0.7 (0.2)
988 CURRY 3.2             3.7              3.5              3.8              0.6                 0.33                -                       3.4 0.2
991 JAMIAS 1.2             1.0              1.0              1.0              (0.2)                0.05                -                       0.9 (0.3)
992 ASPER 0.9             0.9              1.0              0.9              (0.0)                -                  0.10                     0.8 (0.1)
993 LIU 1.8             1.9              1.6              2.0              0.2                 0.38                -                       1.9 0.1
994 DUCK 1.4             0.3              -              1.0              (0.4)                0.96                -                       0.5 (0.8)
995 A. BROWN 1.8             1.8              1.9              2.0              0.2                 0.05                -                       1.8 (0.1)
996 SARETTE 0.6             -              0.7              -              (0.6)                -                  0.70                     0.3 (0.2)

TOTAL WORKED FTEs 439.9         413.8          388.8          417.1          (22.84)       28.26              -                       406.7           (33.2)            

CNTRCT FTES (Inc above) 3.0                 10.6                8.4                   8.8                   5.81           0.41                -                       10.0             7.0               

OVERTIME HOURS Current OT
OT Dollars YTD Hours

600 MEDICAL FLOOR -              6.3              -              -                 -                  6.25                     24.5                 
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 10.5            64.5            29.5            629.68          -                  35.00                   135.0               
610 OB FLOOR -              3.3              -              -                 -                  3.25                     11.8                 
611 NURSERY -              10.3            -              -                 -                  10.25                   12.0                 
612 LABOR & DELIVERY -              4.0              3.8              172.28          -                  0.25                     7.8                    
620 ICU 2.0              22.8            20.0            465.75          -                  2.75                     101.8               
630 OR 5.5              17.8            17.8            683.26          -                  -                       77.0                 
631 SAME DAY SURGERY 3.5              3.3              9.3              376.99          6.00                -                       27.5                 
633 RECOVERY -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
634 CENTRAL STERILE -              -              3.5              81.54            3.50                -                       11.0                 
640 DIALYSIS 0.8              0.5              0.8              46.25            0.25                -                       16.3                 
650 ER 8.8              1.3              13.5            608.25          12.25              -                       170.3               
651 TRAUMA 3.3              -              1.5              33.63            1.50                -                       4.8                    
652 SANE 1.0              -              -              -                 -                  -                       1.3                    
660 RADIATION ONC 9.0              -              6.5              141.38          6.50                -                       22.0                 
661 MEDICAL ONC -              1.3              -              -                 -                  1.33                     2.8                    
700 LABORATORY 13.0            17.0            21.5            676.30          4.50                -                       138.8               
701 HISTOLOGY -              3.0              -              -                 -                  3.00                     6.8                    
702 BLOOD BANK -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       2.0                    
710 RADIOLOGY 1.8              0.3              3.0              106.14          2.75                -                       10.5                 
711 MAMMOGRPAHY 1.0              -              -              -                 -                  -                       1.0                    
712 ULTRASOUND 10.5            -              6.0              359.83          6.00                -                       20.5                 
713 NUC MED -              -              2.0              120.64          2.00                -                       2.3                    
714 CAT SCAN 5.3              1.5              1.3              45.71            -                  0.25                     11.5                 
715 MRI 0.5              -              -              -                 -                  -                       1.0                    
716 PET SCAN -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       0.3                    
720 RESPIRATORY 8.0              -              -              -                 -                  -                       34.3                 
721 SLEEP LAB 3.0              -              -              -                 -                  -                       3.0                    
722 CARDIO -              -              1.5              36.09            1.50                -                       3.0                    
723 CARDIAC REHAB -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
780 PATIENT ED -              2.3              -              -                 -                  2.25                     3.3                    
781 SOCIAL SERVICES -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
782 QUALITY & ACCREDIT 0.5              -              0.5              17.55            0.50                -                       12.5                 
783 INFECTION CONTROL -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
784 COMPLIANCE -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       0.3                    
786 NURSING INFORMATICS -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   

Page 77 of 105Page 127 of 248



18 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 5 of 5 10/18/2017 4:33 PM

PPE 9/3/2017 9/17/2017 10/1/2017 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

790 HEALTH INFORMATION -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       0.3                    
791 CASE MANAGEMENT 21.5            4.5              16.5            1,002.74       12.00              -                       72.5                 
800 MAINTENANCE 0.5              3.3              -              -                 -                  3.25                     9.0                    
801 HOUSEKEEPING 23.8            18.0            8.3              149.51          -                  9.75                     101.5               
802 LAUNDRY 15.0            5.3              3.8              98.85            -                  1.50                     49.0                 
803 BIO MED -              0.3              0.8              44.90            0.50                -                       2.0                    
810 SECURITY 22.0            6.8              5.0              158.43          -                  1.75                     89.8                 
850 PURCHASING -              0.3              -              -                 -                  0.25                     0.8                    
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
870 DIETARY 20.5            53.5            50.0            977.91          -                  3.50                     310.3               
871 DIETICIANS -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
900 ADMINISTRATION -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
901 COMM SVC -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
902 MED STAFF SVC -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
903 MHSC FOUNDATION -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
904 VOLUNTEER SRV -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
905 NURSING ADMIN 11.0            1.5              0.3              8.54               -                  1.25                     76.0                 
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
920 HUMAN RESOURCES -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
930 FISCAL SERVICES -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
940 BUSINESS OFFICE 4.5              -              2.5              85.85            2.50                -                       18.0                 
941 ADMITTING 88.0            81.8            51.0            1,219.19       -                  30.75                   512.3               
942 COMMUNICATION 0.3              -              -              -                 -                  -                       6.0                    
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING 2.5              0.3              1.8              39.06            1.50                -                       7.8                    
949 DENKER 4.7              1.4              2.2              58.63            0.83                -                       13.2                 
950 OLIVER 2.2              1.4              2.3              59.25            0.85                -                       12.4                 
951 JOHNSON 1.7              1.4              2.0              49.84            0.57                -                       8.4                    
953 STEWART -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
954 WHEELER -              -              2.0              48.76            2.00                -                       2.8                    
955 CHOU -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
956 KATTAN 4.8              -              -              -                 -                  -                       6.8                    
958 VERONESE -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
959 GREWAL -              0.3              -              -                 -                  0.25                     0.8                    
960 SANDERS 9.8              9.5              12.3            385.51          2.75                -                       77.3                 
961 DANSIE 0.8              1.1              4.0              217.08          2.88                -                       15.5                 
962 BOWERS 2.8              3.3              2.5              59.75            -                  0.75                     11.8                 
963 LONG -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       1.0                    
964 JAKE JOHNSON -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
965 DOLCE -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       1.0                    
966 OCC MED 17.0            11.0            6.3              134.38          -                  4.75                     84.5                 
968 GILMARTIN -              1.1              2.6              122.90          1.50                -                       8.6                    
969 PAWAR -              -              0.3              14.70            0.25                -                       3.5                    
970 CROFTS -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC -              0.3              -              -                 -                  0.25                     0.3                    
972 FARSON CLINIC -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
973 LAURIDSEN -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING 3.0              10.0            44.8            1,292.86       34.75              -                       180.3               
975 NEUPANE -              -              2.3              101.43          2.25                -                       5.5                    
976 PA LEHMAN 0.8              1.1              4.0              217.08          2.87                -                       15.5                 
978 HOSPITALIST -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
981 CROFT -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
982 CHRISTENSEN -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
983 MACK -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
984 FRANKS -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
986 BONGIORNO -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
988 CURRY 15.3            7.8              12.8            357.94          5.00                -                       53.3                 
991 JAMIAS -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
992 ASPER -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   
993 LIU -              0.1              0.6              30.22            0.50                -                       2.2                    
994 DUCK -              0.1              0.6              30.71            0.50                -                       2.3                    
995 A. BROWN -              1.1              2.6              123.37          1.50                -                       8.6                    
996 SARETTE -              -              -              -                 -                  -                       -                   

TOTAL OT HOURS 359.8          385.3          385.5          11,691       0.17                -                       2,646.6        
TOTAL OT FTEs 4.5              4.8              4.8              0.00                -                       4.7               
OT % WORKED HOURS 1.1% 1.3% 1.2% -                  0.1%

Page 78 of 105Page 128 of 248



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
OPEN BID INVESTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

09/30/17

INTEREST
ACCOUNT FINANCIAL INST RATE 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018
GENERAL BANK OF WEST 3.230% 8,700,000 8,710,751 5,295,564 4,330,411 4,362,377 4,371,539
RESERVE BANK OF WEST 3.230% 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000
GENERAL BANK OF WEST 1.250% 2,460,272 2,983,016 2,964,992 2,972,675
CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT KEYBANK 1.140% 13,539,405 13,001,178 12,299,119 9,231,852 8,253,433 8,253,433
E. BOICE WYOSTAR 1.013% 404,098 39 39 39 40 40
LIFELINE WYOSTAR 1.013% 104,078 104,294 104,607 104,934 105,575 105,838
TOTAL 24,047,580 23,116,262 21,459,601 17,950,252 16,986,416 17,003,523

INFORMATION:

CURRENT INVESTMENT BALANCE: 17,003,523.38$       

GENERAL FUND BALANCE AS OF 09/30/17 1,812,954                
REPRESENTING DAYS OF CASH ON HAND 8.6

RECOMMENDATION:

MAINTAIN FUNDS IN CURRENT INVESTMENTS DUE TO COMPETITIVE INTEREST RATES,
 AND LIQUIDITY OF FUNDS.

24,047,580 23,116,262
21,459,601

17,950,252
16,986,416 17,003,523

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018

Page 79 of 105Page 129 of 248



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
Days of Cash on Hand

9/30/2017

237.36

154.07
135.26

106.86
91.17

106.06

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 YTD 2018

DAYS OF CASH ON HAND

152,647 161,980 

198,019 
228,512 226,999 223,445 179,717 

200,999 202,528 

240,227 245,026 

217,404 

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 YTD 2018

DAILY CASH COLLECTIONS/DAILY CASH EXPENSE

DAILY COLLECTIONS DAILY CASH EXPENSE

Page 80 of 105Page 130 of 248



Page 81 of 105Page 131 of 248



Vouchers Submitted by MHSC at agreed discounted rate

August 2017 $25,316.51
August 2017 $6,466.36
August 2017 $12,235.93
September 2017 $24,309.75

County Requested Total Vouchers Submitted as of September 30, 2017 $68,328.55

Total Vouchers Submitted FY 2018 $68,328.55

Less:  Total Approved by County and Received by MHSC FY 2018 $31,782.87

Total Vouchers Pending Approval by County $36,545.68

FY18 Title 25 Fund Budget from Sweetwater County $601,920.00

Funds Received From Sweetwater County $31,782.87

 FY18 Title 25 Fund Budget Remaining $570,137.13

Total Budgeted Vouchers Pending Submittal to County $0.00

FY17 Maintenance Fund Budget from Sweetwater County $608,812.00

County Maintenance FY18 - July $1,187.70
County Maintenance FY18 - August $512.64
County Maintenance FY18 - September $10,297.70

$11,998.04

 FY18 Maintenance Fund Budget Remaining $596,813.96

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
County Voucher Summary

as of month ending September 30, 2017

Page 82 of 105Page 132 of 248



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Legal Fees By Fiscal Year

FY 2018
Dray, Dyekman, Reed & Healey PC $330.00
Hirst Applegate, LLP $80,618.25
Jamieson & Robinson, LLC $29,046.52
John H. Robinson, P.C. $71.57
Phillips Law, LLC $58,445.47
Settlements $50,000.00

Total FYTD 2018 $218,511.81

Page 83 of 105Page 133 of 248



Page 84 of 105Page 134 of 248



Page 85 of 105Page 135 of 248



Page 86 of 105Page 136 of 248



Page 87 of 105Page 137 of 248



Page 88 of 105Page 138 of 248



Page 89 of 105Page 139 of 248



Page 90 of 105Page 140 of 248



Page 91 of 105Page 141 of 248



Page 92 of 105Page 142 of 248



Page 93 of 105Page 143 of 248



Page 94 of 105Page 144 of 248



Page 95 of 105Page 145 of 248



Page 96 of 105Page 146 of 248



Page 97 of 105Page 147 of 248



Page 98 of 105Page 148 of 248



Page 99 of 105Page 149 of 248



Official CMS Information for
Medicare Fee-For-Service Providers

R

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services

Critical Access Hospital
RURAL HEALTH FACT SHEET SERIES

This publication provides the following information 
about Critical Access Hospitals (CAH):

�
�
�
�

�

�

�
�

�

Background;
CAH designation;
CAH payments;
Reasonable cost payment principles that do not
apply to CAHs;
Election of Standard Payment Method or Optional 
(Elective) Payment Method;
Medicare Rural Pass-Through funding for certain 
anesthesia services;
Incentive payments;
Grants to States under the Medicare Rural Hospital 
Flexibility Program; and
Resources.

Background
Legislation enacted as part of the Balanced Budget 
Act (BBA) of 1997 authorized States to establish a 
State Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Program 

(Flex Program) under which certain facilities 
participating in Medicare can become CAHs. The 
following providers may be eligible to become CAHs:

�
�

�

Currently participating Medicare hospitals;
Hospitals that ceased operation after November 29, 
1989; or
Health clinics or centers (as defined by the State) 
that previously operated as a hospital before being 
downsized to a health clinic or center.

Unlike facilities such as Medicare Dependent Hospitals 
or Sole Community Hospitals, CAHs represent a 
separate provider type with their own Medicare 
Conditions of Participation (CoP) as well as a separate 
payment method. The CoPs for CAHs are listed 
in the “Code of Federal Regulations” (CFR) at 
42 CFR 485.601–647.

CPT only copyright 2011 American Medical Association. 
All rights reserved. CPT is a registered trademark of the 
American Medical Association. Applicable FARS\DFARS 
Restrictions Apply to Government Use. Fee schedules, 
relative value units, conversion factors and/or related 
components are not assigned by the AMA, are not part of 
CPT, and the AMA is not recommending their use. The AMA 
does not directly or indirectly practice medicine or dispense 
medical services. The AMA assumes no liability for data 
contained or not contained herein. 

ICN 006400  January 2012
Page 100 of 105Page 150 of 248



Critical Access Hospital Designation
A Medicare participating hospital must meet the 
following criteria to be designated as a CAH:

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Be located in a State that has established a State 
rural health plan for the State Flex Program (as 
of September 2011, only Connecticut, Delaware, 
Maryland, New Jersey, and Rhode Island did not 
have a State Flex Program);
Be located in a rural area or be treated as rural 
under a special provision that allows qualified 
hospital providers in urban areas to be treated as 
rural for purposes of becoming a CAH;
Demonstrate compliance with the CoPs found at 
42 CFR Part 485 subpart F at the time of application 
for CAH status;
Furnish 24-hour emergency care services 7 days a 
week, using either on-site or on-call staff;
Provide no more than 25 inpatient beds that can 
be used for either inpatient or swing bed services; 
however, it may also operate a distinct part 
rehabilitation or psychiatric unit, each with up to 
10 beds;
Have an average annual length of stay of 96 hours 
or less per patient for acute care (excluding swing 
bed services and beds that are within distinct part 
units); and
Be located either more than a 35-mile drive from the 
nearest hospital or CAH or more than a 15-mile 
drive in areas with mountainous terrain or only 
secondary roads OR certified as a CAH prior to 
January 1, 2006, based on State designation as a
“necessary provider” of health care services to 
residents in the area.

Critical Access Hospital Payments
Medicare pays CAHs for most inpatient and outpatient 
services to Medicare beneficiaries at 101 percent of 

reasonable costs. Under the Medicare ambulance 
benefit, if a CAH or an entity that is owned and 
operated by the CAH is the only provider or supplier 
of ambulance service located within a 35-mile drive of 
that CAH, the CAH or the CAH-owned and operated 
entity is paid 101 percent of the reasonable costs of 
the CAH or entity in furnishing ambulance services. 
Additionally, if there is no other provider or supplier 
of ambulance services within a 35-mile drive of the 
CAH but there is a CAH-owned and operated entity 
furnishing ambulance services that is more than a 
35-mile drive from the CAH, that CAH-owned and 
operated entity can be paid 101 percent of reasonable 
costs for its ambulance services as long as it is the 
closest provider or supplier of ambulance services 
to the CAH. CAHs are not subject to the Inpatient 
Prospective Payment System (IPPS) and the Hospital 
Outpatient Prospective Payment System (OPPS).

The Medicare Part A and Part B deductible and 
coinsurance rules applicable to hospital services 
also apply to CAHs. All outpatient CAH services are 
subject to Part B deductible and coinsurance, with 
the exception of certain preventive services. To find 
additional information about Medicare preventive 
services, visit http://www.cms.gov/PrevntionGenInfo
on the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services 
(CMS) website.

Reasonable Cost Payment Principles That Do NOT 
Apply to Critical Access Hospitals
Payment for inpatient or outpatient CAH services is 
not subject to the following reasonable cost principles:

�
�

Lesser of cost or charges; and
Reasonable compensation equivalent limits.

In addition, payment to a CAH for inpatient CAH 
services is not subject to ceilings on hospital inpatient 
operating costs or the 1-day or 3-day preadmission 
payment window provisions applicable to hospitals 
paid under the IPPS and OPPS.

Election of Standard Payment Method or Optional 
(Elective) Payment Method
Standard Payment Method – Reasonable Cost-Based 
Facility Services, With Billing of Medicare Carrier or A/B 
Medicare Administrative Contractor for Professional 
Services

Under Section 1834(g)(1) of the Social Security Act 
(the Act), a CAH is paid under the Standard Payment 
Method unless it elects to be paid under the Optional 
Payment Method. For cost reporting periods beginning 

2 Critical Access Hospital
Page 101 of 105Page 151 of 248

http://www.cms.gov/PrevntionGenInfo


on or after January 1, 2004, outpatient CAH services 
payments have been increased to the lesser of:

�

�

80 percent of the 101 percent of reasonable costs 
for outpatient CAH services; or
101 percent of the reasonable costs of the CAH 
in furnishing outpatient CAH services less the 
applicable Part B deductible and coinsurance 
amounts.

Payment for professional medical services furnished 
in a CAH to registered CAH outpatients is made by 
the Medicare Carrier or A/B Medicare Administrative 
Contractor (MAC) under the Medicare Physician 
Fee Schedule (PFS), as is the case when such 
professional services are furnished in a hospital 
outpatient department. For purposes of CAH payment, 
professional medical services are defined as services 
furnished by a physician or other qualified practitioner.

Optional Payment Method – Reasonable Cost-Based 
Facility Services Plus 115 Percent Fee Schedule 
Payment for Professional Services (Method 2)

Under Section 1834(g)(2) of the Act, a CAH may elect 
the Optional Payment Method, under which it bills 
the Medicare Fiscal Intermediary (FI) or A/B MAC 
for both facility services and professional services to 
its outpatients. However, even if a CAH makes this 
election, each practitioner who furnishes professional 
services to CAH outpatients can choose whether to:

�

�

Reassign his or her billing rights to the CAH, 
agree to be included under the Optional Payment 
Method, attest in writing that he or she will not bill 
the Medicare Carrier or A/B MAC for professional 
services furnished in the CAH outpatient 
department, and look to the CAH for payment for 
the professional services; or
File claims for his or her professional services with 
the Medicare Carrier or A/B MAC for standard 
payment under the Medicare PFS (i.e., either by 
billing directly to the Medicare Carrier or A/B MAC 
or by authorizing the CAH to bill on his or her behalf 
via a valid reassignment of benefits).

If you, the practitioner who furnishes professional 
services to CAH outpatients, reassign your Part B 
billing rights and agree to be included under a CAH’s 
Optional Payment Method, you must not bill the 
Medicare Carrier or A/B MAC for any outpatient 
professional services furnished at the CAH once the 
reassignment becomes effective. You must sign an 
attestation which clearly states that you will not bill 
the Medicare Carrier or A/B MAC for any services 
furnished in the CAH outpatient department once the 
reassignment has been given to the CAH. For each 
physician or practitioner who agrees to be included 

under the Optional Payment Method and reassigns 
benefits accordingly, the CAH must forward a copy of 
the completed assignment form (Form CMS 855R) to 
the FI and Medicare Carrier or A/B MAC and keep the 
original on file. This attestation will remain at the CAH.

Once the Optional Payment Method is elected, it will 
remain in effect until the CAH submits a termination 
request to its FI or A/B MAC. A CAH is no longer 
required to make an annual election in order to be 
paid under the Optional Payment Method in a 
subsequent year. If a CAH elects to terminate its 
Optional Payment Method, the termination request 
must be submitted in writing to the FI or A/B MAC at 
least 30 days prior to the start of the next cost reporting 
period. The optional method election applies to all 
CAH professional services furnished in the CAH 
outpatient department by physicians and practitioners 
who have agreed to be included under the Optional 
Payment Method, completed a Form CMS 855R, and 
attested in writing that they will not bill the Medicare 
Carrier or A/B MAC for their outpatient professional 
services. To find Form CMS 855R, visit http://www.
cms.gov/CMSForms/CMSForms/list.asp on the CMS 
website.

As of January 1, 2004, payment for outpatient CAH 
services under the Optional Payment Method is based 
on the sum of:

�

�

For facility services – 101 percent of reasonable 
costs, after applicable deductions, regardless 
of whether the physician or practitioner has 
reassigned his or her billing rights to the CAH; and
For physician professional services – 115 percent
of the allowable amount, after applicable deductions, 
under the Medicare PFS. Payment for non-physician 
practitioner (NPP) professional services is 115 percent 
of the amount that otherwise would be paid for the 
practitioner’s professional services under the 
Medicare PFS.

3 Critical Access Hospital
Page 102 of 105Page 152 of 248

http://www.cms.gov/CMSForms/CMSForms/list.asp
http://www.cms.gov/CMSForms/CMSForms/list.asp


Effective January 1, 2007, the payment amount is 
80 percent of the Medicare PFS for telehealth services 
when the distant site physician or other practitioner 
is located in a CAH that has elected the Optional 
Payment Method and the physician or practitioner has 
reassigned his or her benefits to the CAH.

Medicare Rural Pass-Through Funding for Certain 
Anesthesia Services
CAHs may receive reasonable cost-based funding 
for certain anesthesia services as an incentive to 
continue to serve the Medicare population in rural 
areas. The “CFR” at 42 CFR 412.113(c) lists the 
specific requirements hospitals or CAHs must fulfill to 
receive rural pass-through funding from Medicare for 
anesthesia services furnished by certified registered 
nurse anesthetists (CRNA) that they employ or 
contract with to furnish such services to CAH patients. 
CAHs that qualify for CRNA pass-through payments 
receive reasonable cost-based payments for CRNA 
professional services regardless of whether they 
choose the Standard Payment Method or the Optional 
Payment Method for outpatient services, unless they 
opt to include CRNA outpatient professional services 
under their optional method election. For CAHs that 
opt to receive payment for outpatient anesthesia as a 
professional service, the anesthesia is paid on the 
anesthesia fee schedule and the CAH gives up the 
CRNA pass-through exemption for both outpatient and 
inpatient services.

Incentive Payments
Health Professional Shortage Area Incentive Bonus 
Payment

Physicians (including psychiatrists) who furnish care 
in a CAH that is located within a geographic-based, 
primary care Health Professional Shortage Area 
(HPSA) and psychiatrists who furnish care in a CAH 
that is located in a geographic-based mental health 
HPSA are eligible for a 10 percent HPSA bonus 
payment for outpatient professional services furnished 
to a Medicare beneficiary. If you, the physician, have 
reassigned your billing rights and the CAH has elected 
the Optional Payment Method, the CAH will receive 
115 percent of the otherwise applicable Medicare PFS 
amount multiplied by 110 percent, based on all claims 
processed during the quarter.

On an annual basis CMS publishes an updated list 
of ZIP codes that are eligible for automatic payment 
of the HPSA bonus. The list is effective for services 
furnished on or after January 1 of each calendar year. 
If you furnished services in an area that is on the 
CMS list of ZIP codes, the HPSA bonus will be paid 
automatically on a quarterly basis. An area may be 
eligible for the HPSA bonus payment but the ZIP code 
may not be on the list because:

1. It does not fall entirely within a designated full 
county HPSA bonus area;

2. It is not considered to fall within the county based 
on a determination of dominance made by the U.S. 
Postal Service;

3. It is partially within a non-full county HPSA; or
4. Services are provided in a ZIP code area that was 

not included in the automated file of HPSA areas 
based on the date of the data used to create the file.

In these situations, you must utilize the AQ modifier – 
Physician providing a service in an unlisted Health 
Professional Shortage Area (HPSA) – to receive 
payment. You must verify that you are eligible for 
the bonus and that the modifier was used only if you 
are eligible during the current year. Only services 
furnished in an area that was designated as of 
December 31 of the prior year are eligible for the 
HPSA bonus during the current year.

Under the Affordable Care Act, effective for services 
furnished on and after January 1, 2011, general 
surgeons who furnish a 10- or 90-day global surgical 
procedure in ZIP codes that are located in a HPSA are 
eligible for a 10 percent HPSA bonus payment and a 
10 percent HPSA Surgical Incentive Payment.

CPT only copyright 2011 American Medical Association. All rights reserved.

4 Critical Access Hospital
Page 103 of 105Page 153 of 248



Primary Care Incentive Payment

Under the Affordable Care Act, effective for services 
furnished on and after January 1, 2011, the following 
physician and NPP specialties are potentially eligible 
for a Primary Care Incentive Payment of 10 percent 
of allowed charges for Part B primary care services 
furnished to beneficiaries:

�

�
�
�

Family, internal, geriatric, and pediatric medicine 
physicians;
Clinical nurse specialists;
Nurse practitioners; and
Physician assistants.

Only those practitioners enrolled in Medicare with one 
of the specialties listed above and whose primary care 
services accounted for at least 60 percent of his or her 
allowed charges under the Medicare PFS (excluding 
hospital inpatient care and emergency department 
visits) during the designated period are eligible. 
Eligibility for the incentive payment is determined 
annually.

The chart below lists the primary care services that 
are eligible for the incentive payment.

Service Current Procedural
Terminology (CPT) Code

New and Established 
Patient Office or Other 
Outpatient Visits

CPT codes 99201 – 99215

Nursing Facility Care 
Visits and Domiciliary, 
Rest Home, or Home 
Care Plan Oversight 
Services

CPT codes 99304 – 99340

Patient Home Visits CPT codes 99341 – 99350

The incentive payment is paid on a quarterly basis 
and is in addition to other applicable physician 
incentive payments.

Grants to States Under the Medicare Rural Hospital 
Flexibility Program
The Flex Program, which was authorized by Section 
4201 of the BBA (Public Law 105-33), consists of two 
separate but complementary components:

�A Medicare reimbursement program that provides 
reasonable cost-based reimbursement for 
Medicare-certified CAHs, which is administered by 
CMS; and

�A State grant program that supports the 
development of community-based rural organized 
systems of care in participating States, which is 
administered by the Health Resources and Services 
Administration through the Federal Office of Rural 
Health Policy.

To receive funds under the grant program, States 
must apply for the funds and engage in rural health 
planning through the development and maintenance 
of a State Rural Health Plan that:

�
�

�

�

�

Designates and supports the conversions to CAHs;
Promotes emergency medical services (EMS) 
integration initiatives by linking local EMS with 
CAHs and their network partners;
Develops rural health networks to assist and 
support CAHs;
Develops and supports quality improvement 
initiatives; and
Evaluates State programs within the framework of 
national program goals.

Resources
For more information about CAHs, refer to the 
following:

�

�

�

The “Medicare Claims Processing Manual” 
(Publication 100-04) located at http://www.cms.gov/
Manuals/IOM/list.asp on the CMS website;
The “Critical Access Hospital” section of the 
Medicare Learning Network® publication titled 
“MLN Guided Pathways to Medicare Resources 
Provider Specific” booklet at http://www.cms.gov/
MLNEdWebGuide/Downloads/Guided_Pathways_
Provider_Specific_Booklet.pdf on the CMS website; 
and
The “CFR” located at http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/
search/home.action on the U.S. Government 
Printing Office website.

For more information about HPSAs, including 
eligible ZIP codes, visit http://www.cms.gov/
hpsapsaphysicianbonuses/01_overview.asp on 
the CMS website. To find the compilation of Social 
Security laws, visit http://www.ssa.gov/OP_Home/
ssact/title18/1800.htm on the U.S. Social Security 
Administration website. To find Medicare information 
for beneficiaries (e.g., Medicare basics, managing 
health, and resources), visit http://www.medicare.gov
on the CMS website.

CPT only copyright 2011 American Medical Association. All rights reserved.

5 Critical Access Hospital
Page 104 of 105Page 154 of 248

http://www.cms.gov/Manuals/IOM/list.asp
http://www.cms.gov/Manuals/IOM/list.asp
http://www.cms.gov/MLNEdWebGuide/Downloads/Guided_Pathways_Provider_Specific_Booklet.pdf
http://www.cms.gov/MLNEdWebGuide/Downloads/Guided_Pathways_Provider_Specific_Booklet.pdf
http://www.cms.gov/MLNEdWebGuide/Downloads/Guided_Pathways_Provider_Specific_Booklet.pdf
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/search/home.action
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/search/home.action
http://www.cms.gov/hpsapsaphysicianbonuses/01_overview.asp
http://www.cms.gov/hpsapsaphysicianbonuses/01_overview.asp
http://www.ssa.gov/OP_Home/ssact/title18/1800.htm
http://www.ssa.gov/OP_Home/ssact/title18/1800.htm
http://www.medicare.gov


Helpful Websites
American Hospital Association Rural Health Care
http://www.aha.org/advocacy-issues/rural

Critical Access Hospitals Center
http://www.cms.gov/center/cah.asp

Disproportionate Share Hospital
http://www.cms.gov/AcuteInpatientPPS/05_dsh.asp

Federally Qualified Health Centers Center
http://www.cms.gov/center/fqhc.asp

Health Resources and Services Administration
http://www.hrsa.gov

Hospital Center
http://www.cms.gov/center/hospital.asp

HPSA/PSA (Physician Bonuses)
http://www.cms.gov/hpsapsaphysicianbonuses

Medicare Learning Network
http://www.cms.gov/MLNGenInfo

National Association of Community Health Centers
http://www.nachc.org

National Association of Rural Health Clinics
http://www.narhc.org

National Rural Health Association
http://www.ruralhealthweb.org

Rural Health Clinics Center
http://www.cms.gov/center/rural.asp

Rural Assistance Center
http://www.raconline.org

Swing Bed Providers
http://www.cms.gov/SNFPPS/03_SwingBed.asp

Telehealth
http://www.cms.gov/Telehealth

U.S. Census Bureau
http://www.census.gov

Official CMS Information for
Medicare Fee-For-Service Providers

R

Regional Office Rural Health Coordinators
Below is a list of contact information for CMS Regional Office 
Rural Health Coordinators who provide technical, policy, and 
operational assistance on rural health issues.
Region I – Boston
Rick Hoover
E-mail: rick.hoover@cms.hhs.gov
Telephone: (617) 565-1258
States: Connecticut, Maine, 
Massachusetts, New Hampshire, 
Rhode Island, and Vermont

Region II – New York
Miechal Lefkowitz
E-mail: 
miechal.lefkowitz@cms.hhs.gov
Telephone: (212) 616-2517
States: New Jersey, New York, 
Puerto Rico, and Virgin Islands

Region III – Philadelphia
Patrick Hamilton
E-mail: 
patrick.hamilton@cms.hhs.gov
Telephone: (215) 861-4097
States: Delaware, Maryland, 
Pennsylvania, Virginia, West 
Virginia, and the District of Columbia

Region IV – Atlanta
Lana Dennis
E-mail: lana.dennis@cms.hhs.gov
Telephone: (404) 562-7379
States: Alabama, Florida, Georgia, 
Kentucky, Mississippi, North 
Carolina, South Carolina, 
and Tennessee

Region V – Chicago
Christine Davidson
E-mail: 
christine.davidson@cms.hhs.gov
Telephone: (312) 886-3642
States: Illinois, Indiana, Michigan, 
Minnesota, Ohio, and Wisconsin

Region VI – Dallas
Becky Peal-Sconce
E-mail: 
becky.peal-sconce@cms.hhs.gov
Telephone: (214) 767-6444
States: Arkansas, Louisiana, New 
Mexico, Oklahoma, and Texas

Region VII – Kansas City
Claudia Odgers
E-mail: 
claudia.odgers@cms.hhs.gov
Telephone: (816) 426-6524
States: Iowa, Kansas, Missouri, 
and Nebraska

Region VIII – Denver
Lyla Nichols
E-mail: lyla.nichols@cms.hhs.gov
Telephone: (303) 844-6218
States: Colorado, Montana, North 
Dakota, South Dakota, Utah, 
and Wyoming

Region IX – San Francisco
Neal Logue
E-mail: neal.logue@cms.hhs.gov
Telephone: (415) 744-3551
States: Arizona, California, Hawaii, 
Nevada, Guam, Commonwealth 
of the Northern Mariana Islands, 
American Samoa, Marshall Islands, 
Republic of Palau, and Federated 
States of Micronesia

Region X – Seattle
Teresa Cumpton
E-mail: 
teresa.cumpton@cms.hhs.gov
Telephone: (206) 615-2391
States: Alaska, Idaho, Oregon, 
and Washington

This fact sheet was current at the time it was published or uploaded onto the web. Medicare policy changes frequently so links to the source documents have been provided 
within the document for your reference.
This fact sheet was prepared as a service to the public and is not intended to grant rights or impose obligations. This fact sheet may contain references or links to statutes, 
regulations, or other policy materials. The information provided is only intended to be a general summary. It is not intended to take the place of either the written law or 
regulations. We encourage readers to review the specific statutes, regulations, and other interpretive materials for a full and accurate statement of their contents.
Your feedback is important to us and we use your suggestions to help us improve our educational products, services and activities and to develop products, services and 
activities that better meet your educational needs. To evaluate Medicare Learning Network® (MLN) products, services and activities you have participated in, received, or 
downloaded, please go to http://www.cms.gov/MLNProducts and click on the link called ‘MLN Opinion Page’ in the left-hand menu and follow the instructions.
Please send your suggestions related to MLN product topics or formats to MLN@cms.hhs.gov.
The Medicare Learning Network® (MLN), a registered trademark of CMS, is the brand name for official CMS educational products and information for Medicare Fee-For-Service 
Providers. For additional information, visit the MLN’s web page at http://www.cms.gov/MLNGenInfo on the CMS website.

6 Critical Access Hospital
Page 105 of 105Page 155 of 248

http://www.aha.org/advocacy-issues/rural
http://www.cms.gov/center/cah.asp
http://www.cms.gov/AcuteInpatientPPS/05_dsh.asp
http://www.cms.gov/center/fqhc.asp
http://www.hrsa.gov
http://www.cms.gov/center/hospital.asp
http://www.cms.gov/hpsapsaphysicianbonuses
http://www.cms.gov/MLNGenInfo
http://www.nachc.org
http://www.narhc.org
http://www.ruralhealthweb.org
http://www.cms.gov/center/rural.asp
http://www.raconline.org
http://www.cms.gov/SNFPPS/03_SwingBed.asp
http://www.cms.gov/Telehealth
http://www.census.gov
mailto:rick.hoover@cms.hhs.gov
mailto:miechal.lefkowitz@cms.hhs.gov
mailto:patrick.hamilton@cms.hhs.gov
mailto:lana.dennis@cms.hhs.gov
mailto:christine.davidson@cms.hhs.gov
mailto:becky.peal-sconce@cms.hhs.gov
mailto:claudia.odgers@cms.hhs.gov
mailto:lyla.nichols@cms.hhs.gov
mailto:neal.logue@cms.hhs.gov
mailto:teresa.cumpton@cms.hhs.gov
http://www.cms.gov/MLNProducts
mailto:MLN@cms.hhs.gov
http://www.cms.gov/MLNGenInfo


Strategic Value
MHSC’s Strategic Vision and Foundation for Quality and Safety

Page 156 of 248



VALUE

(University of Utah, 2015)

Page 157 of 248



Quality

To err is 
human

First do 
no harm

(Sowada, 2017)

Page 158 of 248



Patient and Family Centeredness

Service

Patient and family centered 
care is working “with” 

patients and families rather 
than just doing “to” or “for” 

them.

(Institute for Patient and Family Centered Care [IPFCC], 2017)
Page 159 of 248



Cost

• Cost to patients and families
• Time in hospital, time away from loved ones, financial burdens, time away 

from work or school, emotional

• Cost to organization
• Use of beds, use of resources, utilization management, resource allocation, 

cost of resources and supplies, time, energy

• Cost to providers and care team
• Use of resources, time, energy, relationships, emotional, financial

It’s not just about the $$$

Page 160 of 248



Quality of care of any health care system:

QMHSC = Q ED+ Q Finance +Q Clinic +Qm4

(Batalden, Nelson, Gardent, & Godfrey, 2005)

Page 161 of 248



(Batalden, Nelson, Gardent, & Godfrey, 2005)
Page 162 of 248

http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiR4OTrn6_WAhUR22MKHZCUD6AQjRwIBw&url=http://www.europeanmedical.info/clinical-microsystems/system-levels.html&psig=AFQjCNFqf15IwqrdPvdsSZnVYtFbWUr4rQ&ust=1505841753252880
http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiR4OTrn6_WAhUR22MKHZCUD6AQjRwIBw&url=http://www.europeanmedical.info/clinical-microsystems/system-levels.html&psig=AFQjCNFqf15IwqrdPvdsSZnVYtFbWUr4rQ&ust=1505841753252880


ED Throughput Influenza/Pneumonia Sepsis
Readmissions Falls Pediatric QI Peer 
Review Antibiotic Stewardship PFAC

IMPROVEMENT PLANS/ACTION PLANS/DRIVER 
DIAGRAMS, PDSA CYCLES

Quality, Safety, Accreditation, 
Finance, Clinic, Hospital Units

QAPI Committee

VALUE SUMMARIES

CEO, CFO, CNO, CCO
Alignment of VALUE 
and organizational 

strategy

BOARD

Local Competition

TJC, CMS, IHI, NQF

VBP, HAC, MIPS, MU, HRRP

Market and Regulatory 
Environment

IOM-Chasm

NQF- Metrics

IHI, Population Health

Intellectual 
Environment

Evidence Based 
Practice Standards

Clinical Quality 
Metrics

Quality 
Committee

Page 163 of 248



Value Driven 

Patient and 
Family 

Centeredness

Dignity and 
Respect

Information 
Sharing

Participation

Collaboration

Page 164 of 248



Quality Service Cost

Care is Safe Care is Effective Care is Patient-Centered Care is Equitable Care is Timely Care is Efficient

Quality Committee

Readmissions
Length of Stay
Case Mix Index
Status
Transfers

Patient ExperienceAntibiotic Stewardship
MIPS
Falls
Timeliness of Care

Value Based Purchasing 
Readmissions Reduction Program
Hospital Acquired Conditions

Page 165 of 248



Page 166 of 248



TJC/CMS
MIPS
Antibiotic    Stewardship
VBP
HAC- Infection Prevention

HIIN
Sepsis 
Readmissions
Falls
Adverse Drug Events

MHSC OFI
Pediatric QI
Peer review- Med staff
PFAC

Quality

Service

Cost

VALUE
Patient and 

Family 
Centeredness

Page 167 of 248



Batalden, P., Nelson, E., Gardent, P., & Godfrey, M. (2005). Leading the macrosystem and mesosystem for 
microsystem peak performance. In S. Berman (Ed.), From front office to front line: Essential issues 
for health care leaders (pp.1-40). Oakbrook Terrace, IL: Joint Commission Resources. 

B. Sowada, personal communication, Septermber 11, 2017. 

Institute for Patient-and Family-Centered Care. About us. Retrieved from http://ipfcc.org/about/pfcc.html

The University of Utah. (2015). Algorithms for innovation. Algorithmm 2: Can we loosen our grip without 
losing control?. Retrieved from http 
://healthsciences.utah.edu/innovation/algorithms/2015/two.php

References

Page 168 of 248

http://ipfcc.org/about/pfcc.html
http://healthsciences.utah.edu/innovation/algorithms/2015/two.php


COPY

Current Status: Pending PolicyStat ID: 4071079

Approved: 09/2017
Expiration: 1 year after approval
Policy Area: General - Housewide
Reg. Standard: LD. 04.04.05, LD.01.02.01,

LD.03.05.01

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient
Experience and Safety Plan

MISSION

VISION

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

QUALITY DEFINITION

STRUCTURE & LEADERSHIP

To deliver superior regional health care services that improve the health and wellness of all people and communities we serve.

To be the leading health care provider delivering quality, innovation, education, community service, and fiscal responsibility.

The organizational-wide Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient Experience and Safety Plan is designed to provide a
systematic and organized approach by which Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) utilizes objective measures to monitor and
evaluate the quality of services provided to patients. The plan encompasses a multidisciplinary and integrated approach, to include all disciplines
and departments, to identify and act upon opportunities to improve processes, patient outcomes and reduce the risks associated with safety in a
manner consistent with MHSC's mission and vision.

"Quality at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County is a patient-centered commitment to excellence, consistently using best practice for process
improvement to achieve the best outcomes for our patients and organizational culture."

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County focuses on bringing value to healthcare through collaboration, promotion of transparency, and the
balance of quality, service (patient experience), and finance.

(University of Utah, 2015)

The Board of Trustees is ultimately responsible for the quality, patient experience and safety of services provided at MHSC. The Quality
Committee of the Board (Quality Committee) acts as the governance body and oversight committee for the fundamental actions related to the

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient Experience and Safety Plan. Retrieved 10/25/2017. Official
copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4071079/. Copyright © 2017 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater
County

Page 1 of 8

Page 169 of 248

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.

https://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy_search/reference/?search_query=&terms=28066
https://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy_search/reference/?search_query=&terms=17994
https://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy_search/reference/?search_query=&terms=4957


COPY
RESPONSIBILITIES

1. Promote the development of standards of care and criteria to objectively measure the quality, patient experience and safety of care/services
rendered in their departments.

2. Monitor and analyze the processes in their areas that affect patient care, safety, process efficiency, outcomes or satisfaction.

3. Design and evaluate work processes to improve quality, patient experience and safety.

4. Collect data identified and assigned through the QAPI, Patient Experience and Safety Plan.

5. Report performance improvement findings and actions.

6. Communicate the status of departmental quality, safety, patient experience and survey readiness initiatives regularly to departmental staff
members.

7. Evaluate the performance of all clinically contracted services and report the results of the evaluation.

8. Take active roles in initiating and following through with MHSC's model for improvement when opportunities for improvement exist.

9. Understand and support the use of MSHC's model for improvement (Appendix 2- MHSC Model for Improvement).

1. Participate in developing specific patient care quality indicators. This may be accomplished by individual medical staff departments or
medical staff committees.

QAPI, Patient Experience and Safety plan. This committee is responsible for leading quality, patient experience and safety from the Board level
throughout the organization. Board of Trustees, Providers, Executive Leaders, and Organizational Leaders make up the Quality Committee of the
Board. These leaders work directly and openly to improve quality by setting goals, modeling behaviors that lead to quality improvement, acting on
recommendations and opportunities for improvement, and allocating resources for improvement.

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County structures improvement strategies around six dimensions: care is safe , care is effective , care is patient-
centered , care is equitable , care is timely and care is efficient . These six key dimensions are congruent with the National Academy of Medicine
(formerly known as the Institute of Medicine) six aims for improvement. See Appendix 1 for MHSC's overview structure of QAPI, patient
experience and safety. Additional resources on the six aims for improvement can be accessed here .

Specific relationships that enable the Quality Committee to accomplish quality assessment, performance improvement, and safety initiatives
include the QAPI Committee, designated work teams and the activities of the medical staff. These groups and the key individuals on the teams
are supported by a structure of formal and informal committees or work groups where components of the program are defined, implemented,
refined, and monitored.

Employees

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), patient experience and safety activities are the responsibility of everyone employed by,
on the Medical Staff of, or contracted with MHSC. Employee engagement in quality improvement activities is an expectation of employment at
MHSC.

Employees are responsible for reporting safety and quality events and working to fix system issues. Employees work collaboratively with
leadership to achieve quality, patient experience and safety goals.

Department and/or Services

Each department and/or service is responsible for establishing specific quality improvement indicators and metrics that are supportive and in
congruence with the hospital-wide QAPI, patient experience and safety areas of focus. Each department and/or service is responsible for
identifying and participating in the analysis of identified occurrences impacting system processes and functions vital to the delivery of care, safety
of the environment, and process efficiency.

Each department and/or service is responsible to communicate and disseminate information and data as appropriate, as well as take active roles
in initiating and following through with MHSC's model for improvement (Appendix 2- MHSC Model for Improvement) when opportunities for
improvement exist. Departments and/or Services will:

Medical Staff

The organized medical staff of MHSC has a leadership role in organizational quality, patient experience and safety activities to improve the quality
and safety of care, treatment, and services, and is accountable to the Board of Trustees. The organized medical staff oversees the quality of care
provided by those individuals with clinical privileges. The Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation (OPPE) process provides opportunities for
improvements in processes, structures, or systems and will be integrated into the QAPI, Patient Experience and Safety plan as appropriate.

The organized Medical Staff will:

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient Experience and Safety Plan. Retrieved 10/25/2017. Official
copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4071079/. Copyright © 2017 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater
County

Page 2 of 8

Page 170 of 248

http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/ImprovementStories/HealthCareMustBeSafe.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/ImprovementStories/HealthCareMustBeEffective.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/ImprovementStories/AcrosstheChasmAim3HealthCareMustBePatientCentered.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/ImprovementStories/AcrosstheChasmAim3HealthCareMustBePatientCentered.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/ImprovementStories/HealthCareMustBeEquitable.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/ImprovementStories/AcrossTheChasmAim4HealthCareShouldBeTimely.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/ImprovementStories/HealthCareMustBeEfficientAim5.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/ImprovementStories/AcrosstheChasmSixAimsforChangingtheHealthCareSystem.aspx


COPY

2. Through its Officers, Committees, and individual members, review and evaluate the results of ongoing monitoring and evaluation of patient
care. This includes, but is not limited to, the required Medical Staff review functions as well as Risk Management, Safety, Patient Experience,
Infection Prevention, Resource Management, Environment of Care (EOC), Root Cause Analysis (RCA), Sentinel event processes and
organizational planning.

3. Identify and analyze problems and opportunities, take appropriate actions and monitor the effect of the actions taken to determine that
problems have been resolved or there has been significant improvement to the highest achievable level that can be expected.

4. Monitor the appropriateness of clinical practice patterns and significant departures from established patterns of evidence-based clinical
practice.

5. Report Medical Staff quality, patient experience and safety results to the Quality Committee of the Board or MEC by way of written reports
and summaries with Medical Staff representation. Results are then reported to the Board.

1. Promote the participation of appropriate staff members and departments in the program through collaborative monitoring and evaluation of
patient outcomes, process efficiency, and important functions.

2. Set expectations for using data and information to improve the safety and quality of care, efficiency, treatment and services.

3. Promote collaborative monitoring and evaluation of patient outcomes and key functions.

4. Analyze data and information in decision-making that supports the safety and quality of care.

5. Evaluate how effectively data and information are used throughout the organization, including contracted services.

6. Manage change and quality improvements that foster the safety of the patient and environment, the quality of care, the patient experience,
and process efficiency and effectiveness.

7. Regularly evaluate the culture of safety and quality using valid and reliable tools.

QUALITY ASSESSMENT AND PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT PROCESS
QAPI MODEL

Organizational Leadership

Organizational leadership supports the maintenance of the QAPI, patient experience and safety process through allocation of staff and resources
necessary to fulfill the requirements of the program. Leaders will:

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County utilizes processes outlined by the Institute for Healthcare Improvement (IHI) Model for Improvement,
developed by Associates in Process Improvement. This model for improvement includes forming a team, setting aims, establishing measures,
selecting changes, testing changes, implementing changes, and spreading changes. The Plan, Do, Study, Act (PDSA) model is used to guide
tests of change within and throughout the organization. Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic, and Time-bound (S.M.A.R.T.) goals are
encouraged to be utilized when appropriate in setting aims. See Appendix 2 for reference- MHSC Model for Improvement.

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient Experience and Safety Plan. Retrieved 10/25/2017. Official
copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4071079/. Copyright © 2017 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater
County

Page 3 of 8

Page 171 of 248



COPY

MHSC Model for Improvement

(Institute for Healthcare Improvement [IHI], 2015; Langley, et al., 2009).

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient Experience and Safety Plan. Retrieved 10/25/2017. Official
copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4071079/. Copyright © 2017 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater
County

Page 4 of 8

Page 172 of 248



COPY

S.M.A.R.T. Goals

Scope of Activities

Establishing Priorities

A. Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County mission and vision

B. MHSC leadership direction

C. High risk diagnoses/procedures/processes

D. High volume diagnoses/procedures/processes

(Minute Movement, 2015)

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County's QAPI, Patient Experience and Safety Plan includes activities that are designed to assess key functions
that impact patient care, overall quality, safety of the environment and process efficiency and effectiveness. The intent is to identify, study, correct
problems and address improvement opportunities found within the process of the QAPI, patient experience and safety functions to enhance care
delivery. Through this process, MHSC collaborates with, and is engaged in, regional and national initiatives to enhance the delivery of patient care
and improve patient outcomes. All departments, and/or services at MHSC are included in the QAPI, patient experience and safety process.

The Quality Committee of the Board will oversee the setting of priorities and measurement for quality, patient experience and safety activities.
Priorities are identified based on leadership objectives, regulatory requirements, survey outcomes, opportunities identified in benchmark projects,
opportunities identified through analysis of safety events and sentinel events, evidence-based standard of care findings, financial opportunities
and/or financial performance or Root Cause Analysis findings. These priorities are displayed in a matrix to better understand areas of importance
and relevance. See Appendix 1 (MHSC QAPI Patient Experience and Safety Process Overview and Prioritization Matrix). Objectives or topics will
be evaluated annually, at minimum, through the Quality Committee to review priority areas for MHSC.

The following criteria will be considered in establishing priorities:

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient Experience and Safety Plan. Retrieved 10/25/2017. Official
copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4071079/. Copyright © 2017 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater
County

Page 5 of 8

Page 173 of 248



COPY

E. High cost diagnoses/procedures/processes

F. Needs and expectations of patients and their advocates

G. Community needs

H. Input/satisfaction from medical staff and employees

I. Significance on clinical outcomes

J. Significance on safety

K. Input from external sources (benchmarking, regulatory agencies, etc)

Developing Measure Specifications

Data Gathering

Data Analysis and Reporting

Implementation of Actions

SAFETY

OTHER ACTIVITIES

• Beryl Institute membership made available to all MHSC employees to enhance an understanding of the patient experience
• Periodic quality updates communicated
• Quality, Safety, and Patient Experience overview at new hire orientation
• Institute for Healthcare Improvement (IHI) Open School courses made available to all MHSC employees, with a core set as a requirement for

new employees
• Quality liaisons to function as an immediate resource for departmental initiatives and quality improvement activities

Work groups or committees define the metrics (indicators, goals, benchmarks, time lines, etc.) for each topic based on identified opportunities.
These teams work collaboratively to develop specific measures and guidelines along with data collection tools when necessary.

Each committee, sub-committee or work group will be responsible for collecting data pertinent to their area of focus based on the specifications
for measurement. This will be collected by a designated person on that committee or work group. This individual will be responsible for gathering
the information and having data available for review by the committee's pre-determined reporting dates. Sampling of data is determined by the
work group when applicable. Real time, concurrent data is collected when possible.

Committees and work groups review and discuss data to determine what interventions must be carried out to attain desired outcomes. When
possible and appropriate, comparison with published benchmarks is used to analyze quality, patient experience and safety measures. A summary
of the data analysis and interventions are shared with the QAPI Committee. An overview of the analysis and interventions will be shared with the
Medical Staff and the Quality Committee of the Board, as appropriate.

Implementation begins and re-assessment occurs with refinement in interventions and actions if the initial desired outcome is not achieved or the
desired outcomes are not sustained. This process is conducted through the Plan, Do, Study, Act (PDSA) model used by Memorial Hospital of
Sweetwater County for process improvement activities. See Appendix 2- MHSC Model for Improvement.

Safety is a leadership and governance priority at MHSC. Safety is critical to quality outcomes and impacts financial objectives and standards of
practice. Therefore, the safety program is integrated with all quality assessment and performance improvement activities (QAPI). It encompasses
risk assessment and risk avoidance through processes of Failure Mode Effect Analysis (FMEA) when appropriate.

The safety program proactively institutes action plans based on findings from The Joint Commission's "Sentinel Event Alerts" as they are made
available.

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County supports a cause and effect approach to patient safety and problem solving. Therefore, Root Cause
Analysis (RCA) are performed based on occurrence report findings or data trends to further identify system issues and implement appropriate
changes when deemed necessary.

Safety events are used in the safety program to track and trend or initiate activities that address process, system, protocol, or equipment events.
Departments and disciplines are integrated into the safety program by having access to safety events and reporting.

Periodic safety surveys are performed to establish priorities within the organization and additional areas of focus and opportunities for
improvement.

Additionally, as a mechanism to share performance improvement activities, enhance the understanding of quality, patient experience and safety
and assist with information transparency throughout the organization, the following also takes place:

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient Experience and Safety Plan. Retrieved 10/25/2017. Official
copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4071079/. Copyright © 2017 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater
County

Page 6 of 8

Page 174 of 248



COPY

QUALITY IMPROVEMENT RESOURCES

• Promotion of safety through engagement of evidence based clinical programs and initiatives
• Monitor regulatory standards compliance data
• Quality improvement training and education
• Preparation of an annual QAPI, Patient Experience and Safety report to the Board of Trustees
• Coordination of internal and external databases that are used for QAPI projects or quality data analysis and/or submission
• Dissemination of safety event reports to appropriate departments, committees, and/or groups within the organization
• Safety event and sentinel event tracking and monitoring
• Coordination of root cause analysis for sentinel events and other occurrences as deemed necessary
• Coordination of action plans related to sentinel events or failure mode effects analysis (FMEA) projects
• Quality performance improvement project identification relative to issues found in safety event reports
• Process or procedure modifications related to findings from safety event trends and/or FMEA projects

IMMUNITY/CONFIDENTIALITY CLAUSES

References

UNUSUAL CHANGES OR EVENTS

The QAPI, Patient Experience and Safety Plan is flexible to accommodate changes in service, structure, unusual events, or other similar
occurrences. Objectives and areas for focus can be introduced at any time based on new or additional findings, trends, or data and will be
included in the scope of the QAPI, Patient Experience and Safety Plan as deemed necessary. The plan, including appendices, will be reviewed
annually, at a minimum. Appendices may be updated more frequently as information is updated to reflect a change in practice or organizational
needs.

The Quality Department and Accreditation Department support and facilitate ongoing organizational quality assessment, performance
improvement, patient experience and safety activities. Resources within the Quality Department and Accreditation Department are provided to
assist hospital employees and providers with identification of appropriate data resources, retrieval of data, development, and coordination of
quality assessment performance improvement activities and analysis of data to support and evaluate quality performance improvement
efforts. Refer to supplemental appendices/attachments for additional information on goal setting and worksheets to guide you through tests of
change.

The primary functions of these departments include:

Additional tools and resources for quality assessment performance improvement, patient experience and safety are made available as electronic
attachments to this plan. These tools and resources will be reviewed on an annual basis and may be updated more frequently as deemed
appropriate.

WY Stat § 35-2-910. Quality management functions for health care facilities; confidentiality; immunity; whistle blowing; peer review.

Subsection A. "Each licensee [hospital, healthcare facility and health services] shall implement a quality management function to evaluate and
improve patient and resident care and services in accordance with the rules and regulations promulgated by the division. Quality management
information relating to the evaluation or improvement of the quality of health care services is confidential. Any person who in good faith and within
the scope of the functions of a quality management program participates in the reporting, collection, evaluation, or use of quality management
information or performs other functions as part of a quality management program with regards to a specific circumstance shall be immune from
suit in any civil action based on such functions brought by a health care provider or person to whom the quality information pertains. In no event
shall this immunity apply to any negligent or intentional act or omission in the provision of care."

Confidentiality shall be maintained, based on full respect of the patient's right to privacy and in keeping with Hospital Policy and State and Federal
Regulations governing the confidentiality of quality and patient safety work. All quality and patient safety data and information shall be considered
the property of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County.

MHSC Quality Assessment Performance Improvement, Patient Experience and Safety Plan adopted from The University of Toledo Medical
Center with their written permission via electronic mail on 6/1/2015.

Institute for Healthcare Improvement [IHI]. (2015). Science of improvement: How to improve. Retrieved from http ://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/
HowtoImprove/ScienceofImprovementHowtoImprove.aspx

Langley, G., Moen, R., Nolan, M., Nolan, W., Norman, L., & Provost, L.P. (2009). The improvement guide: A practical approach to enhancing
organizational performance (2nd ed.). San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers.

Minute Movement. (2015). SMART goals . Retrieved from http ://www.minutemovement.com/smart-goals/

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient Experience and Safety Plan. Retrieved 10/25/2017. Official
copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4071079/. Copyright © 2017 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater
County

Page 7 of 8

Page 175 of 248

http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/HowtoImprove/ScienceofImprovementHowtoImprove.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/HowtoImprove/ScienceofImprovementHowtoImprove.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/HowtoImprove/ScienceofImprovementHowtoImprove.aspx
http://www.minutemovement.com/smart-goals/
http://www.minutemovement.com/smart-goals/


COPY

Approval:

Attachments:

Appendix 1- QAPI, Patient Experience and Safety Prioritization Matrix
Appendix 2- MSHC Model for Improvement
Driver Diagram Example- Sepsis
Driver Diagram Template
Improvement Summary (used for specific process improvements when VALUE
summary is not appropriate)
Improvement Summary Example/Explanation of use
PDSA Detailed Worksheet
PDSA Quick Reference Worksheet
Value Summary Template

Approval Signatures

Approver Date

Kristy Nielson: Chief Nursing Officer pending

The University of Toledo Medical Center. (2014). Quality Assessment, Performance Improvement, and Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved from http
://www.utoledo.edu/policies/utmc/Administrative_Plans/pdfs/
Quality%20Assessment%20Performance%20Improvement%20and%20Patient%20Safety%20Plan%202015.pdf

The University of Utah. (2015). Algorithms for innovation. Algorithmm 2: Can we loosen our grip without losing control?. Retrieved from http
://healthsciences.utah.edu/innovation/algorithms/2015/two.php

Wyoming Laws. (2015). Title 35, Public Health and Safety. Wyoming Statute W.S. §35-2-910 (1977). Quality management functions for health
care facilities; confidentiality; immunity; whistle blowing; peer review. Retrieved from Thomson Reuters WestlawNext.

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement Team - 7/13/2017

Quality Committee of the Board - 7/19/17

Medical Executive Committee - 8/15/2017

Board of Trustees-

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient Experience and Safety Plan. Retrieved 10/25/2017. Official
copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4071079/. Copyright © 2017 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater
County

Page 8 of 8

Page 176 of 248

http://www.utoledo.edu/policies/utmc/Administrative_Plans/pdfs/Quality%20Assessment%20Performance%20Improvement%20and%20Patient%20Safety%20Plan%202015.pdf
http://www.utoledo.edu/policies/utmc/Administrative_Plans/pdfs/Quality%20Assessment%20Performance%20Improvement%20and%20Patient%20Safety%20Plan%202015.pdf
http://www.utoledo.edu/policies/utmc/Administrative_Plans/pdfs/Quality%20Assessment%20Performance%20Improvement%20and%20Patient%20Safety%20Plan%202015.pdf
http://healthsciences.utah.edu/innovation/algorithms/2015/two.php
http://healthsciences.utah.edu/innovation/algorithms/2015/two.php
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/46a20ce4-38b7-4ebb-80f9-e740bf97d5ec/QAPI%20and%20Safety%20Process%20Overview%202017-2018.pdf?Signature=xMV9uKOuXR8OHhS%2FiR3mWnzoJcY%3D&Expires=1511535162&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/cf33b21d-e31b-497a-884f-465e59a82a25/MHSC%20Model%20for%20Improvement-%20QAPI%20and%20Safety%20Plan%202017-2018.pdf?Signature=i0J3LT4glFTvXEHzBUza3r%2BiGok%3D&Expires=1511535162&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/7be531eb-7dd4-4e1e-ae3f-372d8704668d/Driver%20Diagram%20Example-%20Sepsis%202016.pdf?Signature=bz2AriLNa3KanwK8GZpLtvmhOKw%3D&Expires=1511535162&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/7917fca4-a4b1-42ab-a1c7-4b094a73a185/Driver%20Diagram-%20MHSC%20Template.pdf?Signature=oiKqW9nFzLLhF5gCnr9sGpGrqW8%3D&Expires=1511535162&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/1d6d8ce2-18f1-4e62-9c3a-cb4304dd6b0a/Improvement%20Summary%20Template.pptx?Signature=ZTe1Jw%2B%2BGOU%2BCYkBPNlsADLv7sI%3D&Expires=1511535162&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/1d6d8ce2-18f1-4e62-9c3a-cb4304dd6b0a/Improvement%20Summary%20Template.pptx?Signature=ZTe1Jw%2B%2BGOU%2BCYkBPNlsADLv7sI%3D&Expires=1511535162&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/a1e244a4-2c0a-432e-99b4-92f15d517749/Improvement%20Summary%20Template%20Explanation.pptx?Signature=YBEUVOU7qja5uDe9%2F5yE3JywHRc%3D&Expires=1511535162&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/540afcc0-40c8-4f89-8edc-591854123c54/PDSA%20Detailed%20Worksheet-%20IHI%20-%20QAPI%20Plan%202017-2018.docx?Signature=h9F9LoF%2FyoqavJbRLVRIf8m%2BOr0%3D&Expires=1511535162&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/baf8aff9-eef6-42ec-bd9f-b850c79ed85c/PDSA%20Quick%20Reference%20Worksheet.doc?Signature=MbdIlJBBNcCuuRTpzFpHzHkbJgs%3D&Expires=1511535162&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/ae68404c-d53f-4b65-b95b-c357e68fb30a/Value%20Summary%20Template-%20MHSC.pptx?Signature=sx6MP0vim7qLkQHYl4w3nV30EBU%3D&Expires=1511535162&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ


COPY

Current Status: Pending PolicyStat ID: 4071079

Approved: 09/2017
Expiration: 1 year after approval
Policy Area: General - Housewide
Reg. Standard: LD. 04.04.05, LD.01.02.01,

LD.03.05.01

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient
Experience and Safety Plan

MISSION

VISION

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

QUALITY DEFINITION

STRUCTURE & LEADERSHIP

To deliver superior regional health care services that improve the health and wellness of all people and communities we serve.

To be the leading health care provider delivering quality, innovation, education, community service, and fiscal responsibility.

The organizational-wide Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient Experience and Safety Plan is designed to provide a
systematic and organized approach by which Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) utilizes objective measures to monitor and
evaluate the quality of services provided to patients. The plan encompasses a multidisciplinary and integrated approach, to include all disciplines
and departments, to identify and act upon opportunities to improve processes, patient outcomes and reduce the risks associated with safety in a
manner consistent with MHSC's mission and vision.

"Quality at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County is a patient-centered commitment to excellence, consistently using best practice for process
improvement to achieve the best outcomes for our patients and organizational culture."

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County focuses on bringing value to healthcare through collaboration, promotion of transparency, and the
balance of quality, service (patient experience), and finance.

(University of Utah, 2015)

The Board of Trustees is ultimately responsible for the quality, patient experience and safety of services provided at MHSC. The Quality
Committee of the Board (Quality Committee) acts as the governance body and oversight committee for the fundamental actions related to the
QAPI, Patient Experience and Safety plan. This committee is responsible for leading quality, patient experience and safety plan. This committee is

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient Experience and Safety Plan. Retrieved 10/25/2017. Official
copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4071079/. Copyright © 2017 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater
County

Page 1 of 8

Page 177 of 248

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.

https://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy_search/reference/?search_query=&terms=28066
https://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy_search/reference/?search_query=&terms=17994
https://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy_search/reference/?search_query=&terms=4957
http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjh2qC1yanJAhWImYgKHYCqB4QQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fhealthsciences.utah.edu%2Finnovation%2Falgorithms%2F2015%2Ftwo.php&psig=AFQjCNGMGMzVXgQSU21_x1M3qWQkakhh9w&ust=1448472137766242


COPY
RESPONSIBILITIES

1. Promote the development of standards of care and criteria to objectively measure the quality, patient experience and safety of care/services
rendered in their departments.

2. Monitor and analyze the processes in their areas that affect patient care, safety, process efficiency, outcomes or satisfaction.

3. Design and evaluate work processes to improve quality, patient experience and safety.

4. Collect data identified and assigned through the QAPI, Patient Experience and Safety Plan.

5. Report performance improvement findings and actions.

6. Communicate the status of departmental quality, safety, patient experience and survey readiness initiatives regularly to departmental staff
members.

7. Evaluate the performance of all clinically contracted services and report the results of the evaluation.

8. Take active roles in initiating and following through with MHSC's model for improvement when opportunities for improvement exist.

9. Understand and support the use of MSHC's model for improvement (Appendix 2- MHSC Model for Improvement).

1. Participate in developing specific patient care quality indicators. This may be accomplished by individual medical staff departments or medical
staff committees.

responsible for leading quality and safety from the Board level throughout the organization. Board of Trustees, Providers, Executive Leaders, and
Organizational Leaders make up the Quality Committee of the Board. These leaders work directly and openly to improve quality by setting goals,
modeling behaviors that lead to quality improvement, acting on recommendations and opportunities for improvement, and allocating resources for
improvement.

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County structures improvement strategies around six dimensions: care is safe , care is effective , care is patient-
centered , care is equitable , care is timely and care is efficient . These six key dimensions are congruent with the National Academy of Medicine
(formerly known as the Institute of Medicine) six aims for improvement. See Appendix 1 for MHSC's overview structure of QAPI, patient
experience and safety. Additional resources on the six aims for improvement can be accessed here .

Specific relationships that enable the Quality Committee to accomplish quality assessment, performance improvement, and safety initiatives
include the QAPI Committee, designated work teams and the activities of the medical staff. These groups and the key individuals on the teams are
supported by a structure of formal and informal committees or work groups where components of the program are defined, implemented, refined,
and monitored.

Employees

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI) and Safety, patient experience and safety activities are the responsibility of everyone
employed by, on the Medical Staff of, or contracted with MHSC. Employee engagement in quality improvement activities is an expectation of
employment at MHSC.

Employees are responsible for reporting safety and quality events and working to fix system issues. Employees work collaboratively with
leadership to achieve quality, patient experience and safety goals.

Department and/or Services

Each department and/or service is responsible for establishing specific quality improvement indicators and metrics that are supportive and in
congruence with the hospital-wide QAPI and Safety, patient experience and safety areas of focus. Each department and/or service is responsible
for identifying and participating in the analysis of identified occurrences impacting system processes and functions vital to the delivery of care,
safety of the environment, and process efficiency.

Each department and/or service is responsible to communicate and disseminate information and data as appropriate, as well as take active roles
in initiating and following through with MHSC's model for improvement (Appendix 2- MHSC Model for Improvement) when opportunities for
improvement exist. Departments and/or Services will:

Medical Staff

The organized medical staff of MHSC has a leadership role in organizational quality, patient experience and safety activities to improve the quality
and safety of care, treatment, and services, and is accountable to the Board of Trustees. The organized medical staff oversees the quality of care
provided by those individuals with clinical privileges. The Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation (OPPE) process provides opportunities for
improvements in processes, structures, or systems and will be integrated into the QAPI, Patient Experience and Safety plan as appropriate.

The organized Medical Staff will:

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient Experience and Safety Plan. Retrieved 10/25/2017. Official
copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4071079/. Copyright © 2017 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater
County

Page 2 of 8

Page 178 of 248

http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/ImprovementStories/HealthCareMustBeSafe.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/ImprovementStories/HealthCareMustBeEffective.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/ImprovementStories/AcrosstheChasmAim3HealthCareMustBePatientCentered.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/ImprovementStories/AcrosstheChasmAim3HealthCareMustBePatientCentered.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/ImprovementStories/HealthCareMustBeEquitable.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/ImprovementStories/AcrossTheChasmAim4HealthCareShouldBeTimely.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/ImprovementStories/HealthCareMustBeEfficientAim5.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/ImprovementStories/AcrosstheChasmSixAimsforChangingtheHealthCareSystem.aspx


COPY

2. Through its Officers, Committees, and individual members, review and evaluate the results of ongoing monitoring and evaluation of patient
care. This includes, but is not limited to, the required Medical Staff review functions as well as Risk Management, Safety, Patient Experience,
Infection Prevention, Resource Management, Environment of Care (EOC), Root Cause Analysis (RCA), Sentinel event processes and
organizational planning.

3. Identify and analyze problems and opportunities, take appropriate actions and monitor the effect of the actions taken to determine that
problems have been resolved or there has been significant improvement to the highest achievable level that can be expected.

4. Monitor the appropriateness of clinical practice patterns and significant departures from established patterns of evidence-based clinical
practice.

5. Report Medical Staff quality, patient experience and safety results to the Quality Committee of the Board or MEC by way of written reports
and summaries with Medical Staff representation. Results are then reported to the Board.

1. Promote the participation of appropriate staff members and departments in the program through collaborative monitoring and evaluation of
patient outcomes, process efficiency, and important functions.

2. Set expectations for using data and information to improve the safety and quality of care, efficiency, treatment and services.

3. Promote collaborative monitoring and evaluation of patient outcomes and key functions.

4. Analyze data and information in decision-making that supports the safety and quality of care.

5. Evaluate how effectively data and information are used throughout the organization, including contracted services.

6. Manage change and quality improvements that foster the safety of the patient and environment, the quality of care, the patient experience,
and process efficiency and effectiveness.

7. Regularly evaluate the culture of safety and quality using valid and reliable tools.

QUALITY ASSESSMENT AND PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT PROCESS
QAPI MODEL

Organizational Leadership

Organizational leadership supports the maintenance of the QAPI, patient experience and safety process through allocation of staff and resources
necessary to fulfill the requirements of the program. Leaders will:

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County utilizes processes outlined by the Institute for Healthcare Improvement (IHI) Model for Improvement,
developed by Associates in Process Improvement. This model for improvement includes forming a team, setting aims, establishing measures,
selecting changes, testing changes, implementing changes, and spreading changes. The Plan, Do, Study, Act (PDSA) model is used to guide
tests of change within and throughout the organization. Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic, and Time-bound (S.M.A.R.T.) goals are
encouraged to be utilized when appropriate in setting aims. See Appendix 2 for reference- MHSC Model for Improvement.

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient Experience and Safety Plan. Retrieved 10/25/2017. Official
copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4071079/. Copyright © 2017 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater
County

Page 3 of 8

Page 179 of 248



COPY

MHSC Model for Improvement

(Institute for Healthcare Improvement [IHI], 2015; Langley, et al., 2009).

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient Experience and Safety Plan. Retrieved 10/25/2017. Official
copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4071079/. Copyright © 2017 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater
County

Page 4 of 8

Page 180 of 248



COPY

S.M.A.R.T. Goals

Scope of Activities

Establishing Priorities

A. Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County mission and vision

B. MHSC leadership direction

C. High risk diagnoses/procedures/processes

D. High volume diagnoses/procedures/processes

(Minute Movement, 2015)

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County's QAPI, Patient Experience and Safety Plan includes activities that are designed to assess key functions
that impact patient care, overall quality, safety of the environment and process efficiency and effectiveness. The intent is to identify, study, correct
problems and address improvement opportunities found within the process of the QAPI, patient experience and safety functions to enhance care
delivery. Through this process, MHSC collaborates with, and is engaged in, regional and national initiatives to enhance the delivery of patient care
and improve patient outcomes. All departments, and/or services at MHSC are included in the QAPI, patient experience and safety process.

The Quality Committee of the Board will oversee the setting of priorities and measurement for quality, patient experience and safety activities.
Priorities are identified based on leadership objectives, regulatory requirements, survey outcomes, opportunities identified in benchmark projects,
opportunities identified through analysis of safety events and sentinel events, evidence-based standard of care findings, financial opportunities
and/or financial performance or Root Cause Analysis findings. These priorities are displayed in a matrix to better understand areas of importance
and relevance. See Appendix 1 (MHSC QAPI Patient Experience and Safety Process Overview and Prioritization Matrix). Objectives or topics will
be evaluated annually, at minimum, through the Quality Committee to review priority areas for MHSC.

The following criteria will be considered in establishing priorities:

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient Experience and Safety Plan. Retrieved 10/25/2017. Official
copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4071079/. Copyright © 2017 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater
County

Page 5 of 8

Page 181 of 248



COPY

E. High cost diagnoses/procedures/processes

F. Needs and expectations of patients and their advocates

G. Community needs

H. Input/satisfaction from medical staff and employees

I. Significance on clinical outcomes

J. Significance on safety

K. Input from external sources (benchmarking, regulatory agencies, etc)

Developing Measure Specifications

Data Gathering

Data Analysis and Reporting

Implementation of Actions

SAFETY

OTHER ACTIVITIES

• Beryl Institute membership made available to all MHSC employees to enhance an understanding of the patient experience
• Periodic quality updates communicated
• Quality, Safety, and Patient Experience overview at new hire orientation
• Institute for Healthcare Improvement (IHI) Open School courses made available to all MHSC employees, with a core set as a requirement for

new employees
• Quality liaisons to function as an immediate resource for departmental initiatives and quality improvement activities

Work groups or committees define the metrics (indicators, goals, benchmarks, time lines, etc.) for each topic based on identified opportunities.
These teams work collaboratively to develop specific measures and guidelines along with data collection tools when necessary.

Each committee, sub-committee or work group will be responsible for collecting data pertinent to their area of focus based on the specifications for
measurement. This will be collected by a designated person on that committee or work group. This individual will be responsible for gathering the
information and having data available for review by the committee's pre-determined reporting dates. Sampling of data is determined by the work
group when applicable. Real time, concurrent data is collected when possible.

Committees and work groups review and discuss data to determine what interventions must be carried out to attain desired outcomes. When
possible and appropriate, comparison with published benchmarks is used to analyze quality, patient experience and safety measures. A summary
of the data analysis and interventions are shared with the QAPI Committee. An overview of the analysis and interventions will be shared with the
Medical Staff and the Quality Committee of the Board, as appropriate.

Implementation begins and re-assessment occurs with refinement in interventions and actions if the initial desired outcome is not achieved or the
desired outcomes are not sustained. This process is conducted through the Plan, Do, Study, Act (PDSA) model used by Memorial Hospital of
Sweetwater County for process improvement activities. See Appendix 2- MHSC Model for Improvement.

Safety is a leadership and governance priority at MHSC. Safety is critical to quality outcomes and impacts financial objectives and standards of
practice. Therefore, the safety program is integrated with all quality assessment and performance improvement activities (QAPI). It encompasses
risk assessment and risk avoidance through processes of Failure Mode Effect Analysis (FMEA) when appropriate.

The safety program proactively institutes action plans based on findings from The Joint Commission's "Sentinel Event Alerts" as they are made
available.

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County supports a cause and effect approach to patient safety and problem solving. Therefore, Root Cause
Analysis (RCA) are performed based on occurrence report findings or data trends to further identify system issues and implement appropriate
changes when deemed necessary.

Safety events are used in the safety program to track and trend or initiate activities that address process, system, protocol, or equipment events.
Departments and disciplines are integrated into the safety program by having access to safety events and reporting.

Periodic safety surveys are performed to establish priorities within the organization and additional areas of focus and opportunities for
improvement.

Additionally, as a mechanism to share performance improvement activities, enhance the understanding of quality, patient experience and safety
and assist with information transparency throughout the organization, the following also takes place:

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient Experience and Safety Plan. Retrieved 10/25/2017. Official
copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4071079/. Copyright © 2017 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater
County

Page 6 of 8

Page 182 of 248



COPY

QUALITY IMPROVEMENT RESOURCES

• Promotion of safety through engagement of evidence based clinical programs and initiatives
• Monitor regulatory standards compliance data
• Quality improvement training and education
• Preparation of an annual QAPI, Patient Experience and Safety report to the Board of Trustees
• Coordination of internal and external databases that are used for QAPI projects or quality data analysis and/or submission
• Dissemination of safety event reports to appropriate departments, committees, and/or groups within the organization
• Safety event and sentinel event tracking and monitoring
• Coordination of root cause analysis for sentinel events and other occurrences as deemed necessary
• Coordination of action plans related to sentinel events or failure mode effects analysis (FMEA) projects
• Quality performance improvement project identification relative to issues found in safety event reports
• Process or procedure modifications related to findings from safety event trends and/or FMEA projects

IMMUNITY/CONFIDENTIALITY CLAUSES

References

UNUSUAL CHANGES OR EVENTS

The QAPI, Patient Experience and Safety Plan is flexible to accommodate changes in service, structure, unusual events, or other similar
occurrences. Objectives and areas for focus can be introduced at any time based on new or additional findings, trends, or data and will be
included in the scope of the QAPI, Patient Experience and Safety Plan as deemed necessary. The plan, including appendices, will be reviewed
annually, at a minimum. Appendices may be updated more frequently as information is updated to reflect a change in practice or organizational
needs.

The Quality Department and Accreditation Department support and facilitate ongoing organizational quality assessment, performance
improvement, patient experience and safety activities. Resources within the Quality Department and Accreditation Department are provided to
assist hospital employees and providers with identification of appropriate data resources, retrieval of data, development, and coordination of
quality assessment performance improvement activities and analysis of data to support and evaluate quality performance improvement efforts.
Refer to supplemental appendices/attachments for additional information on goal setting and worksheets to guide you through tests of change.

The primary functions of these departments include:

Additional tools and resources for quality assessment performance improvement, patient experience and safety are made available as electronic
attachments to this plan. These tools and resources will be reviewed on an annual basis and may be updated more frequently as deemed
appropriate.

WY Stat § 35-2-910. Quality management functions for health care facilities; confidentiality; immunity; whistle blowing; peer review.

Subsection A. "Each licensee [hospital, healthcare facility and health services] shall implement a quality management function to evaluate and
improve patient and resident care and services in accordance with the rules and regulations promulgated by the division. Quality management
information relating to the evaluation or improvement of the quality of health care services is confidential. Any person who in good faith and within
the scope of the functions of a quality management program participates in the reporting, collection, evaluation, or use of quality management
information or performs other functions as part of a quality management program with regards to a specific circumstance shall be immune from
suit in any civil action based on such functions brought by a health care provider or person to whom the quality information pertains. In no event
shall this immunity apply to any negligent or intentional act or omission in the provision of care."

Confidentiality shall be maintained, based on full respect of the patient's right to privacy and in keeping with Hospital Policy and State and Federal
Regulations governing the confidentiality of quality and patient safety work. All quality and patient safety data and information shall be considered
the property of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County.

MHSC Quality Assessment Performance Improvement, Patient Experience and Safety Plan adopted from The University of Toledo Medical Center
with their written permission via electronic mail on 6/1/2015.

Institute for Healthcare Improvement [IHI]. (2015). Science of improvement: How to improve. Retrieved from http ://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/
HowtoImprove/ScienceofImprovementHowtoImprove.aspx

Langley, G., Moen, R., Nolan, M., Nolan, W., Norman, L., & Provost, L.P. (2009). The improvement guide: A practical approach to enhancing
organizational performance (2nd ed.). San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers.

Minute Movement. (2015). SMART goals . Retrieved from http ://www.minutemovement.com/smart-goals/

The University of Toledo Medical Center. (2014). Quality Assessment, Performance Improvement, and Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved from http

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient Experience and Safety Plan. Retrieved 10/25/2017. Official
copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4071079/. Copyright © 2017 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater
County

Page 7 of 8

Page 183 of 248

http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/HowtoImprove/ScienceofImprovementHowtoImprove.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/HowtoImprove/ScienceofImprovementHowtoImprove.aspx
http://www.minutemovement.com/smart-goals/
http://www.utoledo.edu/policies/utmc/Administrative_Plans/pdfs/Quality%20Assessment%20Performance%20Improvement%20and%20Patient%20Safety%20Plan%202015.pdf


COPY

Approval:

Attachments:

Appendix 1- QAPI, Patient Experience and Safety Prioritization Matrix
Appendix 2- MSHC Model for Improvement
Driver Diagram Example- Sepsis
Driver Diagram Template
Improvement Summary (used for specific process improvements when VALUE
summary is not appropriate)
Improvement Summary Example/Explanation of use
PDSA Detailed Worksheet
PDSA Quick Reference Worksheet
Value Summary Template

Approval Signatures

Approver Date

Kristy Nielson: Chief Nursing Officer pending

://www.utoledo.edu/policies/utmc/Administrative_Plans/pdfs/
Quality%20Assessment%20Performance%20Improvement%20and%20Patient%20Safety%20Plan%202015.pdf

The University of Utah. (2015). Algorithms for innovation. Algorithmm 2: Can we loosen our grip without losing control?. Retrieved from http
://healthsciences.utah.edu/innovation/algorithms/2015/two.php

Wyoming Laws. (2015). Title 35, Public Health and Safety. Wyoming Statute W.S. §35-2-910 (1977). Quality management functions for health
care facilities; confidentiality; immunity; whistle blowing; peer review. Retrieved from Thomson Reuters WestlawNext.

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement Team - 7/13/2017

Quality Committee of the Board - 7/19/17

Board of Trustees - 8/2/2017

Medical Executive Committee - 8/15/2017

Board of Trustees-

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI), Patient Experience and Safety Plan. Retrieved 10/25/2017. Official
copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4071079/. Copyright © 2017 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater
County

Page 8 of 8

Page 184 of 248

http://www.utoledo.edu/policies/utmc/Administrative_Plans/pdfs/Quality%20Assessment%20Performance%20Improvement%20and%20Patient%20Safety%20Plan%202015.pdf
http://www.utoledo.edu/policies/utmc/Administrative_Plans/pdfs/Quality%20Assessment%20Performance%20Improvement%20and%20Patient%20Safety%20Plan%202015.pdf
http://healthsciences.utah.edu/innovation/algorithms/2015/two.php
http://healthsciences.utah.edu/innovation/algorithms/2015/two.php
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/46a20ce4-38b7-4ebb-80f9-e740bf97d5ec/QAPI%20and%20Safety%20Process%20Overview%202017-2018.pdf?Signature=Bzu1%2BLRSwe0jzZZrEewHTocgNX8%3D&Expires=1511535110&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/cf33b21d-e31b-497a-884f-465e59a82a25/MHSC%20Model%20for%20Improvement-%20QAPI%20and%20Safety%20Plan%202017-2018.pdf?Signature=Hil801gkeUQ9uMKGT7q47ynZY0A%3D&Expires=1511535110&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/7be531eb-7dd4-4e1e-ae3f-372d8704668d/Driver%20Diagram%20Example-%20Sepsis%202016.pdf?Signature=nlSfGx%2FI68Ji2Ngpbo5SseKQJlk%3D&Expires=1511535110&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/7917fca4-a4b1-42ab-a1c7-4b094a73a185/Driver%20Diagram-%20MHSC%20Template.pdf?Signature=EVWcqk%2F373VjW3JDIldDSSnYx%2Bc%3D&Expires=1511535110&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/1d6d8ce2-18f1-4e62-9c3a-cb4304dd6b0a/Improvement%20Summary%20Template.pptx?Signature=I4NAJHmwiXdYbepCpqxnAfFGOaQ%3D&Expires=1511535110&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/1d6d8ce2-18f1-4e62-9c3a-cb4304dd6b0a/Improvement%20Summary%20Template.pptx?Signature=I4NAJHmwiXdYbepCpqxnAfFGOaQ%3D&Expires=1511535110&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/a1e244a4-2c0a-432e-99b4-92f15d517749/Improvement%20Summary%20Template%20Explanation.pptx?Signature=KvXLKHTz2rdcZFv4IGWJ9BWdSso%3D&Expires=1511535110&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/540afcc0-40c8-4f89-8edc-591854123c54/PDSA%20Detailed%20Worksheet-%20IHI%20-%20QAPI%20Plan%202017-2018.docx?Signature=Xm9w9VMkXlA68j2IOhPavyJ%2FJ1w%3D&Expires=1511535111&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/baf8aff9-eef6-42ec-bd9f-b850c79ed85c/PDSA%20Quick%20Reference%20Worksheet.doc?Signature=jJSf917pNkkhMjTdz79%2FGTEjMTQ%3D&Expires=1511535111&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4071079/ae68404c-d53f-4b65-b95b-c357e68fb30a/Value%20Summary%20Template-%20MHSC.pptx?Signature=M%2Bd54tzCw9R3Y8axbCr%2FKLiFI5Y%3D&Expires=1511535111&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAJDQ57N3XIO4NIEYQ


2 | PROBLEM AND GOAL STATEMENTS (SM-RT Problems/SMART Goals) 5 | IMPACT

3 | ANALYSIS AND INVESTIGATION 4 | IMPROVEMENT DESIGN AND IMPLEMENTATION

1 | DEFINE AND MONITOR

Description            Improvement Category & Measurement Baseline Date Baseline Goal Q3 2016 Q4 2016 Q1 2017 Q2 2017 Q 3 2017

Quality

Service

Cost

Audit

Team: Lead(s):

Title:

Scope: Physician Champion(s):

VALUE SUMMARY

6/19/2017

Page 185 of 248



Cycle: 
Lead: 
Team:

Date:

Plan Do

StudyAct

Page 186 of 248



 

Institute for Healthcare Improvement [IHI]. (2015). Open school: Lesson 1: Using a PDSA template for tests of change. Retrieved November 19, 2015 from 
http://app.ihi.org/lms/lessonpageworkflow.aspx?CatalogGuid=5b5c79b8-f019-442c-a199-de2041cdfbf5&CourseGuid=7ef37a50-827f-477b-b603-
9b4eef065fe6&LessonGuid=d3ec915f-2bd3-4cdf-9ce5-1899ad0f8dac 
Adapted for MHSC with written electronic mail permission from Gina at openschool@IHI.org received November 15, 2015.  
Reviewed 6/19/2017 

 

PLAN DO STUDY ACT (PDSA) FORM 
   Cycle #:      

Start Date:             End Date:         

Project Title:        

Organization Name:       

Team Lead:       

 

Objectives of this Cycle: 

 Test a Change 

 Implement a Change  

 Spread a Change 

 

Short objective of cycle:       

 

 

PLAN 

 

Test/Implementation Plan:  

 

What change will be tested or implemented?       

 

How will the change be tested or implementation be conducted (consider small scale early)?       

 

Who will run the test or implementation?       

 

Where will the test or implementation take place?       

 

When will the test or implementation take place?       

 

Predictions: 

1.         

Page 187 of 248

http://app.ihi.org/lms/lessonpageworkflow.aspx?CatalogGuid=5b5c79b8-f019-442c-a199-de2041cdfbf5&CourseGuid=7ef37a50-827f-477b-b603-9b4eef065fe6&LessonGuid=d3ec915f-2bd3-4cdf-9ce5-1899ad0f8dac
http://app.ihi.org/lms/lessonpageworkflow.aspx?CatalogGuid=5b5c79b8-f019-442c-a199-de2041cdfbf5&CourseGuid=7ef37a50-827f-477b-b603-9b4eef065fe6&LessonGuid=d3ec915f-2bd3-4cdf-9ce5-1899ad0f8dac


 

Institute for Healthcare Improvement [IHI]. (2015). Open school: Lesson 1: Using a PDSA template for tests of change. Retrieved November 19, 2015 from 
http://app.ihi.org/lms/lessonpageworkflow.aspx?CatalogGuid=5b5c79b8-f019-442c-a199-de2041cdfbf5&CourseGuid=7ef37a50-827f-477b-b603-
9b4eef065fe6&LessonGuid=d3ec915f-2bd3-4cdf-9ce5-1899ad0f8dac 
Adapted for MHSC with written electronic mail permission from Gina at openschool@IHI.org received November 15, 2015.  
Reviewed 6/19/2017 

 
2.         

3.         

4.         

 

Data Collection Plan: 

 

What information is important to collect?       

 

Why is it important?       

 

Who will collect the data?       

 

Who will analyze the data prior to Study?       

 

Where will data be collected?       

 

When will the collection of data take place?       

 

How will the data (measures or observations) be collected?       

 

 

DO 

 

Observations:  

 

Record observations not part of the plan:       

 

Did you need to tweak the original Plan?       

 

Begin analysis of data (graph of the data, picture):       

 

Page 188 of 248

http://app.ihi.org/lms/lessonpageworkflow.aspx?CatalogGuid=5b5c79b8-f019-442c-a199-de2041cdfbf5&CourseGuid=7ef37a50-827f-477b-b603-9b4eef065fe6&LessonGuid=d3ec915f-2bd3-4cdf-9ce5-1899ad0f8dac
http://app.ihi.org/lms/lessonpageworkflow.aspx?CatalogGuid=5b5c79b8-f019-442c-a199-de2041cdfbf5&CourseGuid=7ef37a50-827f-477b-b603-9b4eef065fe6&LessonGuid=d3ec915f-2bd3-4cdf-9ce5-1899ad0f8dac


 

Institute for Healthcare Improvement [IHI]. (2015). Open school: Lesson 1: Using a PDSA template for tests of change. Retrieved November 19, 2015 from 
http://app.ihi.org/lms/lessonpageworkflow.aspx?CatalogGuid=5b5c79b8-f019-442c-a199-de2041cdfbf5&CourseGuid=7ef37a50-827f-477b-b603-
9b4eef065fe6&LessonGuid=d3ec915f-2bd3-4cdf-9ce5-1899ad0f8dac 
Adapted for MHSC with written electronic mail permission from Gina at openschool@IHI.org received November 15, 2015.  
Reviewed 6/19/2017 

 
 

STUDY 

 

Questions: Copy and paste Questions and Predictions from Plan above and evaluate learning. Complete analysis of the 
data. Insert graphic analysis whenever possible. 

1. Prediction:       

Learning (Comparison of questions, predictions, and analysis of data):       

 

2. Prediction:       

Learning (Comparison of questions, predictions, and analysis of data):       

 

3. Prediction:       

Learning (Comparison of questions, predictions, and analysis of data):       

 

4. Prediction:       

Learning (Comparison of questions, predictions, and analysis of data):       

 

Summary (Look at your data. Did the change lead to improvement? Why or why not?):       

 

 

ACT  

 

Describe next PDSA Cycle: Based on the learning in “Study,” what is your next test?       

 

Page 189 of 248

http://app.ihi.org/lms/lessonpageworkflow.aspx?CatalogGuid=5b5c79b8-f019-442c-a199-de2041cdfbf5&CourseGuid=7ef37a50-827f-477b-b603-9b4eef065fe6&LessonGuid=d3ec915f-2bd3-4cdf-9ce5-1899ad0f8dac
http://app.ihi.org/lms/lessonpageworkflow.aspx?CatalogGuid=5b5c79b8-f019-442c-a199-de2041cdfbf5&CourseGuid=7ef37a50-827f-477b-b603-9b4eef065fe6&LessonGuid=d3ec915f-2bd3-4cdf-9ce5-1899ad0f8dac


ImprovementSUMMARY

Title Team Lead

Team Provider Champion

Scope

1| DEFINE AND MONITOR

Improvement Measurement Baseline Goal Q2 2017 Q3 2017 Q4 2017 Q1 2018

2| PROBLEM AND GOAL STATEMENTS

3| ANALYSIS AND INVESTIGATION

5| IMPACT

4| IMPROVEMENT DESIGN AND IMPLEMENTATION

6/19/2017

SMART GOALS: Specific|Measurable|Achievable|Relevant|Time-bound

Page 190 of 248

http://sweetwatermemorial.com/home.aspx


Predict what will happen when the test 
is carried out

Measures  to determine if prediction 
succeeds

PLAN: DO: Describe what actually happened when you ran the test

ACT: Describe what modifications to the plan will be made for the next cycle 

from what you learned

STUDY: Describe the measured results and how they compared to the 

predictions

Cycle: 1
Start Date:

Describe your first (or next) test of change: Person 
responsible

When to 
be done

Where 
to be 
done

List the tasks needed to set up this test of 
change

Person 
responsible

When to 
be done

Where 
to be 
done

.

Page 191 of 248



Predict what will happen when the test 
is carried out

Measures  to determine if prediction 
succeeds

PLAN: DO: Describe what actually happened when you ran the test

ACT: Describe what modifications to the plan will be made for the next cycle 

from what you learned

STUDY: Describe the measured results and how they compared to the 

predictions

Cycle: 2
Start Date:

Describe your first (or next) test of change: Person 
responsible

When to 
be done

Where 
to be 
done

List the tasks needed to set up this test of 
change

Person 
responsible

When to 
be done

Where 
to be 
done

.

Page 192 of 248



PLAN: DO:

ACT: STUDY:

Cycle: 
Start Date:

Page 193 of 248



PLAN: DO:

ACT: STUDY:

Cycle: 
Start Date:

Page 194 of 248



Reduce sepsis 
mortality by 25% 

by September 
2016

Early recognition

Sepsis 3-hour 
bundle adherence 

Enhanced sepsis 
awareness

Sepsis screening 
tools

Incorporate sepsis 
screening tools into the 

electronic medical record

Develop a protocol per 
evidence based practice 

guidelines and the 
Surviving Sepsis Campaign

Incorporate sepsis order 
sets into the electronic 

medical record

Aim
Primary 
Driver(s)

Seconday 
Driver(s)

Specific Change 
Ideas(s)

Change 
Concept(s)

Provide education on 
sepsis, to include 

pathophysiologic process 
of sepsis and 

differentiation of different 
stages of sepsis, best 
practice guidelines, 

organizational protocol, 
how to use equipment 
(non-invasive cardiac 

output monitor), how to 
utilize screening tools

Enhance awareness 
organization wide- share 
information and provide 
education at all levels, 
clinical and non-clinical

Sepsis protocol

Sepsis order sets

Sepsis education 
program

Equipment 
familiarity

Infection prevention

Use automation

Standardization

Improve workflow

Enhance 
outcomes

Build level of 
comfort and 
confidence

Collaboration

Page 195 of 248



 
6/19/2017 

Care is 
Safe

Care is 
Effective

Care is 
Patient‐
Centered

Care is 
Equitable 

Care is 
Timely

Care is 
Efficient

 

 

 QAPI and Safety Process Overview 

 

 

 

Quality 

Committee of 

the Board 

Page 196 of 248



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
QAPI and Safety Prioritization Matrix

2017-2018

Opportunity

Mission and 
Vision/Leader-ship 

Direction High Risk  High Volume High Cost

Important to 
patient/advocate/co

mmunity/experience

Medical 
staff/Employee 

satisfaction Clinical Outcome Safety

Regulatory/ 
Benchmark, 

Payment 
Adjustment

Patient Experience/CAHPS  ●●●●●● x x x x x x x x x
Patient and Family Engagement  ●●●●●● x x x x x x x
Patient and Family Engagement Educ   ●●●●●● x x x x x x x
Leadership Development  ●●●●●● x x x x x x x

Opportunity

Mission and 
Vision/Leadership 

Direction High Risk  High Volume High Cost

Important to 
patient/advocate/co

mmunity/experience

Medical 
staff/Employee 

satisfaction Clinical Outcome Safety

Regulatory/ 
Benchmark, 

Payment 
Adjustment

National Patient Safety Goals ●●●●● x x x x x x
Safety Events ●●●● x x x x x x x
Reduce Harm (HRET-HIIN)  ●●● x x x x x x x
AHRQ Patient Safety Indicators●●●●● x x x x x x x
NHSN Infection Surveillance   ●●●●● x x x x x x x
Sepsis  ●●●●● x x x x x x x
Antimicrobial Stewardship  ●●●●● x x x x x x x x x
National Hospital Quality Measures   ●●●●●● x x x x x x x x
Payment Adjustment Programs (HAC, HRRP, VBP)  ●●●●●● x x x x x x x
Operative Procedures ●●●●●● x x x x x x x x
Operative diagnosis concurrence   ●●● x x x x x x x
Sedation  ●●● x x x x x x x x
Blood Utilization ●●● x x x x x x x x
Resuscitation  ●●●● x x x x x
Zero Suicide Initiative ●●●●●● x x x x x x x x
Falls  ●●●●● x x x x x x x x x
 Medical Imaging/Radiation Safety   ●●●● x x x x x x x x
Organ Conversion ●●●● x x x x
Dialysis Quality  ●●●●●● x x x x x x x
Meaningful Use  ●●●●● x x x x x x
Merit-Based Incentive Program (MIPS) x x x x x x x x x

Opportunity

Mission and 
Vision/Leader-ship 

Direction High Risk  High Volume High Cost

Important to 
patient/advocate/co

mmunity/experience

Medical 
staff/Employee 

satisfaction Clinical Outcome Safety

Regulatory/ 
Benchmark, 

Payment 
Adjustment

Patient Flow/Timeliness of Care  ●●●●●● x x x x x x x x x
Readmissions  ●●●●● x x x x x x x x
QAPI Process ●●●●●● x x x x x x x x
Patient Status Appropriateness x x x x x x
Denials Process x x x x x x

Service
Patient and Family Centeredness

MHSC identified improvement priorities

Color Key:  ● Care is Safe  ● Care is Patient Centered  ● Care is Equitable   ● Care is Efficient   ● Care is Effective  ● Care is Timely

Quality

Cost

Safety & Quality

Resource Utilization

Updated 6/19/2017

Page 197 of 248



             
PDSA Worksheet for Testing Change 

Institute for Healthcare Improvement [IHI]. (2015). Plan-Do-Study-Act (PDSA) Worksheet. Retrieved November 17, 2015 from 

http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/Tools/PlanDoStudyActWorksheet.aspx 

Adapted for MHSC with written electronic mail permission from Gina at openschool@IHI.org received November 15, 2015.  

Reviewed 6/19/2017 

Aim: (overall goal you wish to achieve) 

 
   Every goal will require multiple smaller tests of change 

Describe your first (or next) test of change:  Person 
responsible 

When to 
be done 

Where to be 
done 

    

Plan   

List the tasks needed to set up this test of change Person 
responsible 

When to 
be done 

Where to be 
done 

 
 

 .  

 

Predict what will happen when the test is carried out Measures  to determine if prediction succeeds 

   

Do  Describe what actually happened when you ran the test 
 
 
 

Study Describe the measured results and how they compared to the predictions 

 
 
 

Act  Describe what modifications to the plan will be made for the next cycle from what you learned  

Page 198 of 248

http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/Tools/PlanDoStudyActWorksheet.aspx


ImprovementSUMMARY

Title Team Lead

Team Provider Champion

Scope

1| DEFINE AND MONITOR

Improvement Measurement Baseline Goal Q4 2017 Q1 2018 Or month? Q6 month?

What is your outcome/aim/main goal? 

What process are you doing to measure to meet your goal? 

Any other processes you will be measuring? 

Any balance measures? If you change one thing, what else may you anticipate will 
change?,

2| PROBLEM AND GOAL STATEMENTS

What is your problem? A brief description of what your identified opportunity for 
improvement is, why is it important? What are you working towards improving? 

What is your goal? What is the main thing you are trying to achieve? What 
outcomes are you impacting? You can list these out by each item you are working 
towards or simply identify a main AIM that you are working towards by improving 
each individual area. Be specific!! What is your timeframe for reaching your goal? 

3| ANALYSIS AND INVESTIGATION

Include a brief description of what you did to find the opportunities for 
improvement. You can include a picture of the baseline data showing 
opportunities or you can explain. What drove you to this point? Any background 
information you need to include before getting started on your work? 

5| IMPACT

This can be completed at the end of your project (3 months, 6 months, 1 year, etc) 
to see the impact you have made. This will most likely remain blank until you more 
information of what you are impacting through your improvements. 
Are you indirectly impacting readmission rates? The patient experience? the cost 
of care delivery? This is VALUE

4| IMPROVEMENT DESIGN AND IMPLEMENTATION

What are you doing to improve? What your first step? 
Did you set up a work group to focus on improvements? If so, what kind of team is 
this, when did you first meet to look at opportunities? 
What did you decide to do about opportunities? 

This acts as a timeline to be able to see when you started interventions. You can 
reference the different cycles of change (next page) on this timeline. 

What would you like to call this improvement project?  

Who will be working on implementing the changes? 

What population are you focusing your improvement efforts?  

Who will be leading this team? 

Any provider champions that 
will be helping with
interventions for change? 

6/19/2017

SMART GOALS: Specific|Measurable|Achievable|Relevant|Time-bound

To  be used when looking at a specific process change limited to your 
unit/department and not evaluating overall VALUE at this point (you will eventually)

Page 199 of 248

http://sweetwatermemorial.com/home.aspx


PLAN:

Predict what will happen when the test 
is carried out

Measures  to determine if prediction 
succeeds

vital sign Q 4 rate will increase, 
workflow processes will be identified

Q4 vital sign rate, feedback

DO: Describe what actually happened when you ran the test

Include here what you did. 
Did you try Q4 vital signs with 1 nurse, on 1 day? 
Did all nurses on 1 shift try this? 
When did you start? 

ACT: Describe what modifications to the plan will be made for the next cycle 

from what you learned

Are you making any changes? what did you learn from your small test of change? 
If changes to your plan are made, begin a new cycle (next page)

STUDY: Describe the measured results and how they compared to the 

predictions

What were the results of your test? 
What were workflow barriers? Do you need to change your plan to modify? 

Are you going to start this for the entire department? Do you additional changes 
and barriers need to be addressed? 

Did Q4 vital sign rate increase? 

Do you need to change anything? 

Cycle: 1
Start Date:

Describe your first (or next) test of change: Person 
responsible

When to 
be done

Where 
to be 
done

vital signs Q4 hours. will try with 1 nurse, for 
1 day. 

List the tasks needed to set up this test of 
change

Person 
responsible

When to 
be done

Where 
to be 
done

consistent documentation
.

Page 200 of 248



Predict what will happen when the test 
is carried out

Measures  to determine if prediction 
succeeds

PLAN: DO: Describe what actually happened when you ran the test

ACT: Describe what modifications to the plan will be made for the next cycle 

from what you learned

STUDY: Describe the measured results and how they compared to the 

predictions

Cycle: 2
Start Date:

Describe your first (or next) test of change: Person 
responsible

When to 
be done

Where 
to be 
done

List the tasks needed to set up this test of 
change

Person 
responsible

When to 
be done

Where 
to be 
done

.

Page 201 of 248



PLAN: DO:

ACT: STUDY:

Cycle: 
Start Date:

Page 202 of 248



PLAN: DO:

ACT: STUDY:

Cycle: 
Start Date:

Page 203 of 248



Aim
Primary 
Driver(s)

Seconday 
Driver(s)

Specific Change 
Ideas(s)

Change 
Concept(s)

6/19/2017

Driver Diagram

Page 204 of 248



 

Updated: 6/19/2017 

MHSC Model for Improvement* 

Forming the Team  

 Including the right people on your team is critical to success 

 Teams may vary in size and composition 

 Each team should include members that are relevant and specific to suit your 

needs and drive your outcome 

Setting Aims 

 Any change or improvement requires setting an aim 

 The aim should be time specific and measureable 

 The aim should include the specific population or system that will be affected 

 Refer to S.M.A.R.T goals for specific aims 

Establishing Measures 

 Use quantitative measures to determine if a specific change actually leads to 

improvement 

 The Quality Department is available to assist you in determining ways to 

obtain quantitative data 

Selecting Changes 

 Ideas for change may come from insights of those who work in the system or 

by borrowing the experience from others who have been successful in driving 

change 

 Do not be afraid to be creative and innovative 

 Do not be afraid to reach out to others and utilize their ideas- why re-invent 

the wheel? 

Testing Changes 

 The Plan-Do-Study-Act (PDSA) cycle is used for testing changes in the work 

setting 

 Plan it, try it, observe results, and act on what is learned- repeat if needed 

Implementing Changes  

 After testing change on a small scale using the PSDA cycle, learning from 

each test, and refining your change (through several cycles if needed), you 

may begin to implement change on a larger scale 

Spreading Changes 

 After successful implementation of change, spread it! 

 Do not be afraid to share your ideas and spread change throughout MHSC! 

 

*MHSC Model for Improvement based on IHI’s and Associates in Process Improvement Model for Improvement.  

Institute for Healthcare Improvement [IHI]. (2015). Science of improvement: How to improve. Retrieved from 

http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/HowtoImprove/ScienceofImprovementHowtoImprove.aspx 

Langley G., Moen, R., Nolan K., Nolan T., Norman C., & Provost L. (2009). The improvement guide: A practical approach to enhancing organizational 

performance (2nd edition). San Francisco: Jossey-Bass Publishers.  

Page 205 of 248

http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/HowtoImprove/ScienceofImprovementHowtoImprove.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/Publications/ImprovementGuidePracticalApproachEnhancingOrganizationalPerformance.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/Publications/ImprovementGuidePracticalApproachEnhancingOrganizationalPerformance.aspx


 

Updated: 6/19/2017 

S.M.A.R.T. Goals 

 

 

(http://www.minutemovement.com/smart-goals/) 

 

 

 

 

Page 206 of 248

http://www.minutemovement.com/smart-goals/
http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCMjdisfmtcgCFUnxYwod4xgCRw&url=http://www.minutemovement.com/smart-goals/&psig=AFQjCNHrfnayzRLTWtNg3n6xu_-9DaJ8zQ&ust=1444494249840280


Page 207 of 248



Page 208 of 248



Page 209 of 248



Page 210 of 248



Page 211 of 248



Page 212 of 248



Page 213 of 248



Page 214 of 248



Page 215 of 248



Page 216 of 248



Page 217 of 248



Page 218 of 248



Page 219 of 248



Page 220 of 248



Page 221 of 248



Page 222 of 248



Page 223 of 248



Page 224 of 248



Page 225 of 248



Page 226 of 248



Page 227 of 248



Page 228 of 248



Page 229 of 248



Page 230 of 248



Page 231 of 248



Page 232 of 248



Page 233 of 248



Page 234 of 248



Page 235 of 248



Page 236 of 248



Page 237 of 248



Page 238 of 248



Page 239 of 248



Page 240 of 248



Page 241 of 248



Page 242 of 248



Page 243 of 248



Page 244 of 248



Page 245 of 248



Page 246 of 248



Page 247 of 248



Page 248 of 248


	Meeting Book
	meeting book - wednesday - november 1, 2017 board of trustees regular meeting.pdf


